AGENDA FOR

Public Document Pack

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Contact::
Direct Line:
E-mail:
Web Site:

Keren Murphy

0161 2535130
k.m.murphy@bury.gov.uk
www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : A Cummings (Chair), J Black, S Briggs,
S Carter, R Caserta, D Gunther, P Heneghan, D Jones,
A Matthews, A Quinn, S Southworth and Y Wright

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control
Committee which will be held as follows:-

COoOUNCIL i‘lj

Date:

Tuesday, 2 September 2014

Place:

Peel Room, Bury Town Hall

Time:

7.00 pm

Briefing
Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members
require briefing on any particular item on the
Agenda, the appropriate Director/Senior Officer
originating the related report should be
contacted.

Immediately prior to the Committee, the Development
Manager will brief the Committee on any changes
made to the planning applications to be considered
since the issue of the Agenda. This information will be
provided in the supplementary information agenda
which will be circulated on the day of the meeting.

Notes:

A tea will be available from 5.00 pm (Balcony
Bar) this will be followed by the usual pre-meeting
briefing (Lancaster Room).

Further information relating to Site Visits/Member
Training will be circulated separately, for the
information of Members and Officers.




AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if
so, to formally declare that interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 JULY 2014 (Pages 1 - 4)
PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 5 - 82)

DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 83 - 96)

A report from the Development Manager on recent Delegated planning
decisions since the last Planning Control Commitee meeting held in July,
2014.

PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 97 - 106)

A report from the Development Manager on recent Planning Appeal
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee held in
July, 2014.

URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



Agenda Item 3

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 29 July, 2014

Present: Councillor A Cummings (In the Chair)
Councillors J Black, S Briggs, S Carter, R Caserta,
D Gunther, D Jones, A Matthews, A Quinn, S
Southworth and Y Wright

Public attendance: 13 members of the public were in attendance

Apologies for
absence: Councillor P Heneghan

P.185

P.186

P.187

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Quinn declared a Prejudicial Interest in Application 57542 as he
has been involved in discussions with an objector. Councillor Quinn left
the meeting during consideration of the application.

MINUTES
Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 June, 2014 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report by the Development Manager was submitted in relation to
various applications for planning permission. Supplementary information
was also submitted in respect of application numbers: 57224, 57459,
57526, 57571 and 57586.

The Committee heard representations from applicants and/or objectors in
respect of the applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes
for each speaker.

Delegated decisions:

That Approval be given to the following applications in accordance with
the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the report and
supplementary information submitted and subject to the conditions
included:-

57512 2 Market Place (including 57 & 59 Bridge Street) -

Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom Ward
Change of use from shop (Class Al) to professional estates facilities and

121

Page 1



Planning Control Committee, 29 July 2014
property letting agents (Class A2) ground floor and basement only.

57526 1 Park Hill Place (rear of 12 Park Hill), Bury Old Road -
Prestwich - Sedgley Ward

Change of use to office (Class Bla) with retention of storage (Class B8) at
ground floor.

57542 91 Windsor Road, - Prestwich - Sedgley Ward
Change of use from office to coffee shop (Class A3) with external seating
and new shop front.

57571 87 Church Street, Ainsworth, Bolton - Radcliffe - Radcliffe
North Ward

Replacement Dwelling (amended scheme)

(Note: An additional condition relating to boundary treatment/hedgerow
was agreed).

57586 Magnum Whiteline 184-188 Bury New Road - Whitefield &
Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward

Two storey extension at side; Widening of access road at side and change
of use of waste land at rear to form car park.

57636 26 Silver Street, Bury - Bury East - East Ward

Change of use of ground floor and part of first floor to restaurant (Class
C3); subdivision of building to form offices at ground, first and second
floors (Class B1); new entrances formed on Bank Street and Silver Street
and internal alterations.

57645 26 Silver Street, Bury — Bury East - East Ward

Listed building consent for change of use of ground floor and part of first
floor to restaurant (Class C3); subdivision of building to form offices at
ground, first and second floors (Class B1); new entrances formed on Bank
Street and Silver Street and internal alterations.

57651 Tesco Stores Limited, Woodfield Retail Park, Peel Way, Bury
- Bury East - Moorside Ward

Extension at side to create a dot com/click and collect area with canopy
(resubmission).

2. That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following applications in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in
the report and supplementary information submitted and subject to the
conditions included:-

57224 Land adjacent to 41 Station Close, Radcliffe, Manchester -
Radcliffe — Radcliffe North Ward
Erection of 11 no. dwellings detached dwellings with access road and

122

Page 2



P.188

P.189

P.190

Planning Control Committee, 29 July 2014
demolition of existing bridge structure (resubmission)
57459 Land at Heap Street, Radcliffe, Manchester - Radcliffe -
Radcliffe East Ward
Erection of 2 no. dwellings

DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report by the Development Manager was submitted listing all recent
Planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers.

Delegated decision:
That the report be noted.
PLANNING APPEALS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted which presented a
list of recent planning and enforcement appeals lodged and determined.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT

A report from the Development Manager was submitted which provided
statistical information on Enforcement activity between 1 April 2014 and
30 June 2014. The report also provided statistical information and a
comparison with other Planning Authorities’ Enforcement activity between
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

COUNCILLOR A CUMMINGS (Chair)

(Note: The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 7.50 pm)

123

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee
On: 02 September 2014
By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.
Policy: Identified in each case.
Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:

The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include
a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, | have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 5



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

Development Manager

Background Documents

The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.

Certificates relating to the ownership.
Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.

Responses from Consultees.

OON =~

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 6



01

Township Forum - Ward: Bury West - Church App No. 57475
Location: Land at Wellington Street, Bury, BL8 2AX
Proposal: New operational training and community safety awareness facility for the

fire service including mock houses, tram and train training facilities, fire
street, urban search facilities, ship facility and eight floor high rise

structure.
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Y
Visit:

02 Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington App No. 57703
Location: Land at Kirklees Lodges, Garside Hey Road, Bury, BL8 4LT
Proposal: Community asset and education centre for environmental awareness

including stables (equine therapy), paddock, car park and education
centre/clubhouse
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Y
Visit:

03 Township Forum - Ward: Bury East App No. 57725
Location: Bury Art Museum, Moss Street, Bury, BL9 0DF
Proposal: Listed building application for installation of temporary sculpture (12

months) in alcoves at front of sculpture centre and library entrance.
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:

04 Township Forum - Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley App No. 57767

Location: Super Deli Kosher Meat and Grocery Shop, 53 Bury New Road,
Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9JY

Proposal: Erection of a new canopy on front elevation; Creation of 6 no. new car
parking spaces; Creation of a new footpath front and side; Cladding over
existing roller shutters to be replaced with brick work facade; Replacement
roller shutter.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Y

Visit:
05 Township Forum - Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's App No. 57784
Location: Land to north of Beech House, Clifton Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25
3HG
Proposal: Erection of garage
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:

Page 7



Ward: Bury West - Church ltem 01

Applicant: Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service
Location: Land at Wellington Street, Bury, BL8 2AX

Proposal: New operational training and community safety awareness facility for the fire service
including mock houses, tram and train training facilities, fire street, urban search
facilities, ship facility and eight floor high rise structure.

Application Ref: 57475/Full Target Date: 25/07/2014
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

A site visit is suggested by the Development manager given the unusual nature of the
development and the size of the site.

Description
The application site comprises a site 3.78ha in size that was formerly used by Milliken's a
floor covering manufacturer.

The site is relatively flat and has within the site a number of buildings that are vacant and of
varying sizes. There is a significant amout of vacant land that had been used for servicing
and parking within the site in conjunction with the main operations that used to be carried
out at the site by Milliken.

The site is located within the Daisyfield Employment Generating Area (EGA) and is
bounded to the north by the post officer sorting facility and other properties that are
searated by Back Bolton Road that front on to Bolton Road; To the west is Wellington
Street, which is the main accessway to the EGA, the river Irwell to the east and the Bury
and Bolton canal to the south.

Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Authority (GMFRA) have identified the need for a new
operational training facility in the north west that would serve the ten boroughs of Greater
Manchester and beyond.

The development would comprise the construction of a number of training scenarios which
would have the ability to replicate different examples that the GMFRA might find themselves
having to respond to in real life. To this extent, the development would also provide
opportunities for Fire and Rescue crews from further afield including Cheshire, Cumbria,
Lancashire and Merseyside.

The training scenarios would include an internal training area within a large warehouse
building, a 'fire street', a collapsed building, a water scenario including jetty and ship fire,
urban search and rescue to include a high rise facility of some 8 storeys in height, housing
scenarios, culvert and sewer system, collapsed house, a trench and cutting area, a
(dummy) chemical spillage and transport scenarios. Essentially residential, commercial and
industrial scenarios and these would take place both inside and outside reflecting the nature
of the scenario.

The new facility would also look to provide wider community safety campaigns by having
interactive self-guided and accompanied tours, allowing visitors to experience training
scenarios first hand at the visitor centre. The site will also feature an immersive learning
zone to enhance the learning experience and demonstrate the importance of safety at home
and on the road.

After extensive searches the site was selected from an original list of 20 sites as the one
Page 8



which most closely met their needs which were established in February 2012.

e The site is large enough to contain all the necessary training and community functions.

e Existing features on the site provide an ideal environment for a diverse range of training
scenarios, including the river and lodge.

e The site also boasts excellent links to the road network, and it is not envisaged that the
operation of the site will have a negative impact on local traffic flows.

e The site is located in a predominantly industrial area of Bury which would minimise
potential disturbance to local business and residents.

The applicant states that the site was chosen for its remoteness and would not therefore
impact upon amenity. The centre would be available 24 hours per day and 7 days per week,
with any late night training taking place indoors and remote to sensitive uses. The main use
of the site would concentrate operation to between 7am and 11pm daily.The community
safety centre would be operational between 9am and 5pm and on an appointment basis.

Parking for some 47 vehicles would be provided and space for 3 coaches. Access to the
site would be from Wellington Road, off Bolton road and would be from the further south of
the site near to the canal.

Initially, the applicant expects that visitors would be 1 coach per day increasing to no more
than 3 and to arrive from 10am until 2pm. Other visitors are anticipated not to exceed 20.
Permanent staff is likely to be approximately 10 in number.

Relevant Planning History
No relevant planning history.

Publicity

The application was publicised through letter notifications sent to 334 addresses including
Millett Street, Sankey Street, Tenterden Street, Railway Terrace, businesses on/Off
Wellington Street, Wlashe Street, Bolton Road, Doctors Lane, Fold Street, Arthur Street and
Daisyfield on 25/4/14. A full list of the addresses can be found on the working file.

Site notices were put around the site on 2nd May 2014 and a press notice was published in
the Bury Times on 25/4/14.

The applicant has also undertaken their own publicity through meeting schools, residents
and businesses in the locality as well as published articles in the Bury Times and
information on their own website.

As a result of this publicity, there have been 1 letter of objection from The Bacon Factory
Heys Street and a comment from the Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal Society (see
consultees section below). Issues raised include:

Objection: More consideration needs to be given to the impact on the access roads and
parking in the area. All access to the site is regularly down to one lane because of the lack
of adequate parking facilities. On Heys Street there are regularly reversing large 40 tonne
vehicles to gain access to our site meanwhile The Post office workers and British Gas
engineers park throughout the area from 6-7 am through to the afternoon and the general
public use the road to gain access to the postal sorting office through out the day. This
causes considerable congestion.

Most days large vehicle transporters park opposite the site itself on Wellington St, in order
to deliver vehicles to the car sales companies in the area and the local taxi rank park along
the road awaiting calls. Along Arthur st access is regularly reduced by the users of the
Martial arts centre and local fast food takeaways.

On Buxton street, the only area of all day free parking , vehicles park on both sides of the
Page 9



road all day, reducing it to one lane.

The application makes no mention of the extreme difficulty experienced by businesses and
workers in the area already to find adequate parking and access without adding another
(according to the application's figures) 176 car movements in the area every day.

| believe access for the fire service in and out for anything larger than a car will be extremely
difficult at times, these issues are not ones that can be solved by further imposing parking
restrictions, causing further damage to local businesses and impositions on their
employees.

What is needed is the creation of additional parking facilities, perhaps the council/the fire
service could include this in their plans as given the weight of traffic in the area and the
considerable parking problems, any such venture would prove a wise investment with only a
small charge to the users necessary, perhaps invite the private sector to invest?

Either way without additional parking the application is flawed and will cause considerable
disruption to local firms and employees.

The respondents has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections. Indications are that there are no significant concerns as
traffic generation would be significantly less than the former industrial use.

Drainage Section - No objections subject to conditions.

Environmental Health :-

Contaminated Land - No objections subject to conditions relating to contamination removal
where necessary and gas ingress prevention..

Air Quality/Pollution Control - It is recognised that the modelling of fugitive emissions can
be very difficult. However the applicant’s consultants have used their experience and
knowledge to model the likely impacts and all methods have been clearly described and
justified where necessary. The conclusion is that the impact of the development will be
negligible and this is accepted by the Environment Section.

Canal & River Trust - No objections in principle. Add conditions relating to the provision of
historical information panels about the site's past, details relating to the excavation of the
channel of the canal, details relating to Barlow's Bridge within the site and the re-siting of
some aspects of the development so as not to impact upon the canal line within the site.
Further work is being undertaken with regards to the conditions from this consultation and
will be finalised/confirmed in the supplementary.

Environment Agency - No objections. Add conditions concerning drainage, an evacutation
plan relating to flood risk, finished floor levels being set to a particular level.

Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity - No response received.

National Grid - No objections.

United Utilities (Water and Waste) - No objections. There is a sewer crossing the site that
and no built development would be permitted. Easements will also be required foir access
and maintenance. Drainage comments and water comments have also bee provided with
no objections to the proposals.

The Coal Authority - Initial objection due to the nature of the development and the
relationship to close to surface former workings. An Update response is to be provided in
the supplementary agenda.

Fire Protection Dept Bury Fire Station (Part B) - No objections.

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No initial objections. Some additional details required
concerning the river wall in terms of habiation and a series of conditions relating to
ecological mitigation.

G M Archaeological Advisory Service - No objections. Add condition relating to the need
for archaeological study in relation to a written ststement of investigation.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EC2/1 Employment Generating Areas

Page 10



EN1 Built Environment

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

EN10/2  Riverside and Canalside Improvement in Urban Areas
EN3 Archaeology

EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk
ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

ENG6/4 Wildlife Links and Corridors

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

EN7/3 Water Pollution

EN7/4 Groundwater Protection

EN7/5 Waste Water Management

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT6/3 Cycle Routes

HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs
RT4/7 The Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal
NPPG National Planning Policy Guide

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle

In terms of the principle of the proposal, the site sits within a wider area designated as the
Daisyfield Employment Generating Area under UDP Policy EC2/1. Under this designation,
development will only be allowed for B1, B2 or B8 uses. Other uses will only be

permitted where they constitute limited development or where it would not substantially
detract from the area's value as an EGA.

The application site covers a significant area and cannot be regarded as constituting limited
development in the context of Policy EC2/1. The issue is then whether the training centre
would substantially detract from the area's value as an EGA. In this regard, it is necessary
to consider whether the training centre would have an adverse impact on other existing
businesses in the area. In this respect, it is not considered that a fire training centre would
be a particularly sensitive use and that it would be resilient to the activities of surrounding
business operations. As such, it is unlikely that the use of the site would lead to the
imposition of restrictions on the activities of any of the surrounding businesses.

The use of the site as a fire training centre would lead to the loss of an existing,

vacant employment site that could potentially be reused for employment purposes.
However, it is considered appropriate to balance this issue against the fact that a
concentrated area of employment use is likely to be the most appropriate location for
accommodating such a use and that the site offers key features that are integral to providing
the GMFRS with an ideal environment for a diverse range of training scenarios. In this
respect the requirements of the GMFRS and the opportunities offered by the application site
are unique.

Furthermore, the proposal represents a significant investment in the Borough which would
also bring strong community benefits given the inclusion of a Community Safety Centre as
part of the wider proposal.

In summary, although the proposal would lead to the loss of employment land within an
EGA, it is considered that the use of the site would not adversely affect other businesses in

Page 11



the area and the unique nature of the proposal means that an existing employment area
represents an appropriate location for a fire training centre. Furthermore, the location,
characteristics and features of the application site mean that it meets the wide ranging
requirements of the GMFRS. This, coupled with the community benefits that would arise,
means that, on balance, the proposal is considered to be acceptable in principle.

Design and Layout Approach - The new Operational Training Facility for Greater
Manchester Fire & Rescue Service has been principally driven by the need for fire and
rescue scenario fidelity and the need to deliver a community safety message to the general
public.

The approach has also attempted to retain existing features where possible. Most significant
of these features are the original Barlow’s Bridge and the line of the canal running through
the site. GMFRS have been cognisant of the need to maintain these structures and to
preserve the ability to reinstate at a later date. We have provided a separate document that
details the historical context of these features and demonstrates our desire to minimise
development impact upon them.

The site offers significant opportunities to maintain and reuse existing structures for these
purposes and this has been taken onboard. Where structures are reusable they have been;
as with the main Community Building and the Vehicle Garage along with a number of other
smaller structures including the security lodge at the Wellington Street entrance.

Many of the existing building envelopes and external works structures on the site have
however come to the end of their design life and these envelopes have been replaced with
new, ensuring longevity and enhancement to the sites aesthetic.

Where new structures have been provided these have been specifically designed to ensure
training fidelity; the need to create realistic environments that will fully immerse the fire
fighters within their training. They also need to create the typical real scenarios that may
occur in a live situation. Each new building has been provided specifically to address a
particular operational need whether it is dealing with a road traffic accident, a train incident
or a fire in a multistorey block of flats.

The site would be split between the operational function of the fire service and the
community awareness facility. The demarcation between the two is clearly defined to
ensure safety and security. The existing southern end of the site provided an opportunity to
develop car parking in an area of existing hard standing and utilise the existing large
warehouse structure for a new Community entrance and safety awareness facility.

The site generally provides facility in four quadrants; community; fire street; hazmats; and
transport. The existing entrance off Wellington Street, opposite Buxton Street utilises
existing site roads to access various parts of the site. It provides access to the northern area
of the site adjacent the Irwell via the historic Barlow Bridge. This northern area of the site
has been developed in the past but currently does not contain any existing infrastructure.

New access roads and buildings have been provided to this area to replicate a typical street
scene with residential, commercial and multi storey buildings provided alongside tram lines
and street furniture. This ‘fire street’ is a critical part of the fidelity requirements for the site.

Many of the existing site features have been retained and are utilised in their original
condition. These structures are of a scale to suit the proposed reuse which includes a visitor
entrance and experience and an internal operational demonstration area in the existing
warehouse adjacent the Irwell. The provision of a vehicle garage to the industrial building
adjacent the reservoir is consistent with the plan dimensions and height of this

structure. The security lodge adjacent the Wellington Street site entrance is being
refurbished internally and will accommodate security, administration and seminar functions.

Page 12



New structures and buildings on the site have been provided consistent with the Fire
Services training needs and to provide fidelity in use. Residential training facilities including
detached houses, terraced houses and flats have been shown on the plans to be consistent
with typical dimensions for these structures. The flats would be located in an 8 storey high
multistorey facility, which would enable the Fire Service to recreate realistic operational
conditions for fire fighters and replicate the physical and mental issues that result in fighting
a fire or carrying out a search and rescue exercise at height. The site is substantial in size
and there are high rise industrial buildings to the south that provide existing context for high
rise buildings. Furthermore, the site is not on any main road frontage and the main roads
are well enclosed by existing development such that the buildings on the site, including the
high rise building would not be particularly visible or prominent.

Commercial training facilities including an office / retail space, a workshop / garage and a
high rise office would be consistent with typical dimensions for these properties. The high
rise office scenario has been located in the multi-storey building alongside the residential
flats providing a dual use opportunity.

The roof of the multi storey building will also be utilised provide high ropes training. The
multi storey building has been located in the lowest part of the site on ‘firestreet’ to minimise
its height impact within the development.

Other facilities on the site including the ship scenario, the industrial scenario, the rail
scenario, collapsed structure scenarios and confined spaces have all been provided to
ensure minimal impact on the site and all have been provided consistent with the need to
create a realistic training opportunity and are consistent with real facilities but do not impact
on the visual appearance of the site.

The existing site boundaries are generally being retained as existing and are primarily
galvanised steel pallisade fencing panels. Masonry site boundaries adjacent the river are
generally in a poor state of repair and these will receive restoration works to ensure future
longevity and integrity.

Existing site hardstandings are generally concrete, a remnant of the previous industrial use.
These hardstandings are being retained and repaired where possible as they provide an
excellent base for fire service vehicular traffic. New areas of hardstanding are generally to
be concrete to provide a resilient surface to the extensive trafficking from fire service
vehicles.

The car park to the southern end of the site has been overlain with a macadam surface due
to issues with levels and surface water dispersal and to provide a more welcoming entry
experience for the public.

New fire scenario structures including the mock residential properties, commercial buildings,
collapsed structure and the like have all been proposed to be constructed from traditional
materials found in these building types in real life (clay masonry and concrete roof tiles) to
enhance realism and to provide a robust finish for fire protection. The 'elephant building'
would principally be a transport garage and general storage facility.

Principal existing building structures on the site would be retained with over cladding to
improve appearance, thermal performance and life cycle costs. The Community Safety
facility would be extensively overclad to provide a more welcoming facility and opportunity to
create a focus.

As such the development would have no significant impact upon the area and would not
conflict with EN1/2.

Access and Car Parking - Current access into the site is from major estate roads that are
constructed to highways standards with footpaths and street lighting. All provide level and
safe access off Wellington Street. Access from the classified road network to the site is

Page 13



gained from Bolton Road (A58) via the traffic signals at Arthur Street. Both Arthur Street and
Wellington Street to and beyond the site accesses are protected by working day waiting
restrictions. However, within the site boundary the on-site access roads have deteriorated
and / or are none existent and would require repair and additional provision to enable the
safe and effective use of the full site area.

Car parking is currently available to the south of the site. However this is an informal
arrangement with no delineation of parking bays or restrictions on parking numbers. The
parking is generally located on what appears to be floor slabs of previously demolished
buildings. Parking is not permitted to an area believed to have basements from a previous
building use, which is defined by a post and rail fence.

The application is accompanied with a transport assessment, which sets out the demands
that the previous use of the site generated and the proposed demands arising from the
proposals under consideration.

The previous use's demands are important in the consideration of access in that they set
out how the highways to and from the site carried significant traffic movements (also in
consideration of the other uses in the vicinity) and what degrees of change would be
anticipated from the current proposals.

The site would be split such that the car parking areas would be well away from operational
training areas and the site would be laid out so that the main entrance building provides
security for the site and the first point of reference upon arrival. Parking would be provided
for both staff and visitors and the development would also make provision for coach parking,
to limit the need for reliance upon single mode transport. There are no specific levels of
provision contained within the adopted SPD for car parking and new development. As
such, the levels of provision must be determined on their own merits.

The site is well served by bus services with links to extensive travel opportunities
particularly from local transport interchanges. Cycle parking would be provided and space
for motorbikes. The transport Statement and associated travel plan recognises that there
may be local issues in terms of parking and suggests that there ought to be a scheme
submitted, secured through a planning condition, to strengthen the existing waiting
restrictions in the vicinity of the operational site access. The Council’s Traffic team has no
objections to this proposal. Crews involved in training will arrive by their own tenders and
visitors would arrive by coach. This would mean that day to day staff number (around 10
people) and other trainees would be unlikely to ustilise all of the available parking and that
based upon the 'spread of demand' throughout the day, the levels of provision are
considered acceptable and compliant with HT2/4 and SPD11.

The area is typical of multi users with different vehicles and is consistent with an
employment generating area. Planning land allocations would encourage the use of this
application site, whether it be for this proposal or any other employment use and therefore
there would always be an increase of traffic above the levels evident today. The key point is
that in terms of the likely generation of traffic and movements for a site of this size, the
proposals would gnerate a relatively modest level of traffic increase above current ones and
therefore is considered to be acceptable.

Air Quality - As part of a new training development on the site to maintain realism, the
training will be based upon live fire under controlled situations, and as such a large amount
of smoke would be expected to be produced, which is an environmental hazard, with the
smoke containing unburned particles and other harmful chemicals which could spread
offsite.

In order to maintain the Fire Service’s environmental commitments and to comply with the
pollution regulations, the training facility is to be provided with smoke cleaning facilities that
would reduce the contaminants released into the atmosphere to as low as possible given

Page 14



the available technology. This report aims to outline the available methods of smoke
cleaning, the most suitable system type and other design and operational considerations.

As part of the application proposals, there are consultant reports on the mechanical
screening facilities to be used and also dispersion modelling has been carried to determine
any residual effects.

Receptors assessed include adjoining businesses and other land uses in all directions from
the site and including the residential properties and Grammar school to the east of the site
across the river. Typically the modelling uses a 2x2km artesian grid.

The training rigs would involve the construction of dwelling house within a larger portal
frame building, where smoke could accumulate under the roof. As such, the facility has
been subject to a smoke production model that has determined the likely smoke extract rate
necessary for a mechanical system that will draw the smoke out at roof level. It is proposed
that a suitable smoke cleaning system is provided to the mechanical extract system that will
limit the amount of pollutants released into the atmosphere.

Control of the quality of the air controlled by the Environment Act 1995 and is enforced by
the Local Authorities. The strategy document produced by DEFRA identifies the main
pollutants that are monitored, and includes ‘Particulate Matter’ from combustion sources,
Oxides of Nitrogen, Sulphur Dioxide, aromatic Hydrocarbons, Benzene and Carbon
Monoxide, all of which will be produced in the combustion processes at the Training Centre.

Control of pollution from industrial sources is enshrined in the Pollution Prevention and
Control Act 1999. Bury is part of the Greater Manchester Air Quality Network, which covers
ten local authorities and comprises of a network of monitoring stations.

The proposals would seek to use different types of mitigation to prevent air borne pollution
from burns. These would include the use of both wet and dry mechanical scrubbers that
would remove pollutants. These can be capable of removing 95% of particles that are
greater than 5 microns in diameter.

A spray tower scrubber is the simplest type, which consists of an open vessel with one or
more sets of spray nozzles. Typically, the gas stream enters from below and passes
upwards through the spray. This process is also available in a horizontal process, but is not
as efficient. To improve the efficiency of the extraction of smaller particles, a system like a
Venturi Wet Scrubber is used, where the waste gas stream is accelerated to atomise the
liquid and improve gas/air contact.

The by-product of the scrubbing process is slurry, which the contents would have to be
disposed of. As the content is inert, then it can be disposed of via landfill, however were any
contents to be hazardous and would therefore require specialist disposal. Some systems
have a ‘de-watering’ process that separates the water from the slurry and feeds it back into
the scrubber system, leaving a dry waste. The slurry should be disposed of by a company
that is compliant with Environmental Management Standard 1ISO 14001.

The modelling data using datasets of relatively local meteorological conditions and localised
air quality monitoring data. The results in the report confirms that the impact upon human
receptors is not expected to cause adverse effects and is not likely to lead to exceedences
of the annual mean or 1 hour pollutant levels within the air quality monitoring boundaries.
These findings are not disputed by the Council’s Air Pollution team.

Canal and Historical Context

The site has been previously developed and historical uses that have left a legacy of
archaeological features. These include a canal (infilled) running through the site from north
to south, with Barlow's bridge, which is still present crossing the canal in the centre of the
site. There were also vaious historical mills on the site formerly including Barlow’s

Croft Bleach Works, Elton Paper Mill, Victoria Mill (cotton), Albert Mill (cotton, cotton

Page 15



spinning and engineering works) and New Victoria Mills (cotton spinning). Reservoirs and
filter beds to the south and North West of the site serving previous mill works have been
subsequently infolled. Numerous water channels / infrastructure associated with reservoirs,
filter beds, the canal, River Irwell and works.

As part of the design process and a programme of archaeological work has been
undertaken to establish and record historical features of the site where building works are
likely to disturb these features. The site work for this has now been completed and a final
report is awaited from the archaeologists. This report will be made publicly available on
publication.

The disused canal and Barlow’s Bridge are the most visibly significant of the site’s historical
features. The bridge is in poor condition but is to be repaired. The trust has provided a
separate document that has looked at the new developments effect on the canal and the
bridge and provided this to the applicant.

The applicant has carried out load testing of Barlow Bridge to establish its capacity to
continue to take vehicular traffic. These tests have shown that it still has adequate bearing
capacity. It is the intent within the development proposals to carry out repairs and
renovations to a number of existing structures on the site, including buildings, retaining
walls, Barlow’s Bridge, the canal and the only remaining mill wall backing onto the proposed
Community Building.

The Canal and River Trust have been involved in both pre-application meetings and have
been a key driver in the consideration and process to inform the proposals. The Trust is
keen to ensure that the proposed development does not obstruct any potential restoration of
the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal to navigation. Policy RT4/7 of the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan states that “The Council will protect and safeguard the
Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal and support proposals for its restoration.

Proposals for canalside development will be expected to enhance the canal environment
and not prejudice its restoration. The Trust notes that the proposal does not appear to
include the erection of any new permanent buildings or structures within the line of the
canal, and that no works are proposed to Barlow’s Bridge that may obstruct navigation
beneath it. They are pleased to note that the applicant has sought to demonstrate how the
layout of the proposed facility can be adapted to allow for the restored canal in the Canal
Design and Historical Context Statement.

The proposal to use the canal to the north of Barlow’s Bridge for the siting of a ship training
scenario is supported in principle, and ideally these works should involve the full restoration
of this section of the channel to navigable standards. The Trust also supports the proposal
to include educational panels informing visitors of the historic canal-related use of the site.
The Trust have recommended conditions to enable the above matters to be
delivered/incorporated.

Ecology

The application site lies within the riverside corridor where UDP Policy EN6/3 and ENG/4
seeks wildlife protection and enhancement in the corridor or the identification of ecological
features. There are a number of ecological features and constraints associated with the site
including the river and embankment, culverts outflows, river headwalls, mill pond, tree
cluster, vacant buildings and an open unused site.

The Greater manchester Ecology Unit have been consulted on the proposals and consider
that there are no fundamental objections to the scheme, subject to the inclusion of a number
of planning conditions and the requirement for additional information.

Bats - All bar one building were assessed as no to low bat roosting potential despite the
location. The final building was assessed as medium potential and two emergence surveys
carried out in August and September. One bat was recorded emerging from the

Page 16



building. The roost was assessed as being an occasional roost for low number of
pipistrelle. A Natural England License will be required to destroy or disturb the roost.
Current guidance is that Ecologicallly Protected Species licenses should now be
conditioned through planning controls.

The results of the bat daytime inspection survey are shown in an addendum report following
the response made by GMEU. In summary, no bats or signs of bats were recorded during
the survey and the target features were assessed as offering no/low bat roost potential due
to their construction. Taking this information into account, it was mutually agreed with
GMEU that no further survey effort (i.e. nocturnal survey) is deemed necessary.
Additionally, it was agreed that no further nocturnal surveys of the former mill wall are
required prior to determination. The wall was re-inspected during survey of the other
structures and no evidence of bats (e.g. droppings) was found as would be expected if the
mill wall was being used as a maternity roost. Furthermore, the mill wall faces north and is
therefore a sub-optimal site for use by a maternity colony.

Other Protected Species - GMEU are enerally content with the overall assessment that
other protected species are unlikely to be present on the site. However whilst correctly not
picked up on the desk top search both otter and kingfisher are known to use the Irwell
adjacent to the site, with records up and downstream ie the Irwell will form part of the
territory of both these protected species. It is unlikely that the works will have any negative
impacts on the Irwell as a habitat for either of these species. Informatives should however
be added to any permission regarding the potential of these species to be present.

Whilst there is only a low risk of otters being present, the applicant has been reminded and
has acknowledged that under the Habitat Regulation it is an offence to disturb, harm or kill
otters or their place of rest. If an otter is found during the development all work should
cease immediately and a suitably licensed ecologist employed to assess how best to
safeguard the otter(s). Natural England should also be informed.

The applicant is reminded that Kingfishers are protected under schedule 1 of the Wildlife &
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). It is an offence to take, injure or Kill a kingfisher or
destroy its nest, eggs or young. It is also an offence to recklessly disturb the birds close to
their nest during the breeding season. If a kingfisher is found to be nesting on or near the
site during the development work should cease and a suitably experienced ecologist
employed to how best to safeguard the kingfisher(s).

Nesting Birds - GMEU agree with the ecologists assessment of the bird nesting potential on
site. A condition should be imposed to control any tree removal where nesting birds may
be using as a habitat.

Invasive Species - Japanese knotweed, himalayan balsam and giant hogweed have been
identified on the site all covered by schedule 9 part 2 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
(as amended). Method statements for avoidance/control/eradication of all three species will
be required. These can be covered via condition.

Mill Pond - The mill pond is fenced off so it was not possible to undertake a full investigation
by the ecologists of the waterbody. The mill pond appears to be concrete/stone lined with
steep (c45°) banks. These have been colonised by a range of habitats including scattered
willow scrub, tall ruderals, rank grass and dense ivy. Reedmace is present around the
northern margins of the waterbody and there are some patches of Japanese knotweed. The
pond is likely to support a range of species groups including amphibians (smooth newt and
common frog and toad), wildfowl (coot, moorhen and ducks) and fish (probably cyprinids
considering that the pond was formerly used by the local angling club). The pond is
therefore likely to be a feature of site value importance.

The pond will not be affected by the proposed development and will remain insitu. Pollution
will be prevented during the construction and operational phases through the installation of
interceptors around its perimeter. Japanese knotweed will be treated and eradicated prior to

Page 17



development commencing.

Other Features of Ecological Value and Wildlife Corridor - A number of trees will be lost as a
result of the development, features of ecological value under Bury Councils UDP policy
ENG6/3. These are not subject to any Tree Preservation Order. Similarly the mill pond will
be covered under this policy, which whilst retained could be indirectly impacted upon by the
development. Finally the River Irwell is a major strategic Wildlife Corridor covered under
UDP policy EN6/4. The corridor is already weak at this point. The development provides
an opportunity to enhance this feature. The development should seek to achieve no nett
loss of biodiversity in line with section 109 of the NPPF. | would therefore recommend that
mitigation for the loss of trees occurs through enhancements to the River corridor and
around the Mill Pond.

The ecologist has identified Wild Service Tree (Sorbus torminalis) On the site. If true this
would be the first record for Greater Manchester and the GMEU would object to its

removal. However the identification of the tree was erroneous and does not have the same
value or status of importance.

Given the above, it is considered that there would be no undue impact upon ecology as a
result of the development with the use of appropriate planning conditions.

Response to objections - This has been dealt within in the parking and access section of
this report.

Conclusion - This proposal would bring forward an extensive vacant site and would
introduce a unique training facility to the Borough. The development proposed would
incorporate many mitigating features through controls achieved through planning conditions
and in so doing would ensure that the site would maintain and assist riverside and canalside
improvements and maintainance of historical features.

The development would not have any significant impact upon neighbours, air quality or
traffic levels and would bring a number of jobs to the site and value to the boruogh as a
diversification and importance facility to the fire Authority.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered:
PLANS:

External Hardstandings sheet 1 of 4 1805.25 (0) 111 Rev P3
Page 18



Retaining walls to Fire Street GA Plan 1805.25 (0) 107 Rev P3

Multi storey building plans sheet 1 of 2 1805.25 (2) 306 Rev P8

Multi storey building plans sheet 2 of 2 1805.25 (2) 307 Rev P8

Security Lodge — Proposed plan and Elevations 1805.25 (4) 302 Rev P3
External hardstandings sheet 3 of 4 1805.25 (0) 113 Rev P3

External hardstandings sheet 2 of 4 1805.25 (0) 112 Rev P4

Retaining walls to Fire Street elevations and sections 1805.25 (0) 108 Rev P3
GA and RC Details of foundation to ship 1805.25 (0) 122 Rev P3

Unmade areas 1805.25 (0)205 Rev P2

Existing buildings 1805.25 (0) 204 Rev P2

Swept path analysis for 12.4 Hydraulic Inspection platform 7357-003
Swept Path Analysis for 2.4 Hydraulic Inspection Platform (option 2) 7357-002
Swept path analysis for Hydraulic Inspection Platform (option 1) 7357-001
Security Lodge — existing plans and elevations 1805.25 (4) 301 Rev P1
Elephant Building — existing plans, elevations and sections 1805.25 (3) 301 Rev
P2

Commercial building — section 1805.25 (2) 502 Rev P4

Fire House — Elevations 1805.25 (2) 407 Rev P4

Pump house — existing and proposed layouts 1805.25 (0) 302 Rev P2
Existing and proposed gas meter building layouts 1805.25 (0) 301 Rev P2
Roads 1805 (0) 208 Rev P2

External works details 1805.25 (0) 127 Rev P2

Sundry structures sheet 1 of 2 1805.25 (0) 206 Rev P2

Below ground foul drainage to community building 1805.25 (0) 126 Rev P1
Pontoon and access to lodge 1805 (0) 125 Rev P3

Pontoon and River access 1805.25 (0) 124 Rev P3

GA and RC details of trench collapse scenario 1805.25 (0) 123 Rev P3
Community building — Existing elevations 1805.25 (1) 401 Rev P2
External hardstanding sheet 4 of 4 1805.25 (0) 114 Rev P3

Domestic terraced level 2 and roof plans 1805.25 (2) 304 Rev P6
Domestic terrace levels 0 and 1 plans 1805.25 (2) 303 Rev P7

Ground Improvement layout 1805.25 (0) 109 Rev P3

Community building — demolition plan 1805.25 (1) 305 Rev P1
Community building — existing sections 1805.25 (1) 501 Rev P1
Distressed building scenario 1805.25 (0) 606 rev P2

USAR area detail 1805.25 (0) 602 Rev P6

Collapsed structure scenario 1805.25 (0) 607 Rev P2

Briefing shelter detail 1805.25 (0) 601 Rev P3

Electrical services — external lighting Isolux plot 96-G-02b Rev B
Domestic detached 1 plans 1805.25 (2) 301 Rev P7

Community building — existing floor plan 1805.25 (1) 301 Rev P3
Commercial detached plans 1805.25 (2) 305 Rev P7

Proposed site sections 1805.25 (0) 502 Rev P1

Site plan — proposed signage locations 1805.25 (0) 213 Rev P2

Existing site sections 1805.25 (0) 501 Rev P2

Ship scenario 1805.25 (0) 608 Rev P5

Sundry structures sheet 2 of 2 1805.25 (0) 207 Rev P2

Rail and tram platform detail 1805.25 (0) 604 Rev P4

Existing site plan 1805.25 (0) 202 Rev P1

Electrical services — external lighting tabulated results 96-G-01a Rev B
Swept path analysis of a 15.0m luxury coach 7935-002 Rev A

Combined services — MEPH External services layout 96-G-01 Rev C
Safety centre — ground floor proposal 2342-001 Rev C

Swept path analysis of a single deck bus 7935-001

Swept analysis for 12.4 hydraulic platform at Wellington Street viaduct 7357-005
Swept path analysis for DB32 Fire Appliance (option 2) 7357-004

Safety centre — first floor proposal 2342-002 Rev C

Swept path analysis of a 12.0m coach 7935-003

Industrial fire scenario area 1805.25 (0) 603 Rev P3

Page 19



Community building proposed ground floor 1805.25 (1)302 rev C1
Location Plan 1805.25 (0)201 rev P5

Proposed site drainage layout sheet 1 of 4 1805.25 (0) 115 rev T2
Proposed site drainage layout sheet 2 of 4 1805 (0)116 rev T2
Proposed site drainage layout sheet 3 of 4 1805.25 (0) 117 rev T1
Proposed site drainage layout sheet 4 of 4 1805.25 (0) 118 rev T1
Domestic bungalow sections 1805.25 (2) 504 rev C1

Multi storey building sections 1805.25 (2) 503 rev C1

Section — domestic 1805.25 (2) 501 rev C1

Elephant building proposed elevations 1805.25 (3) 401 rev C1

Multi storey building elevations 1 and 2 sheet 1 of 2 1805.25 (2) 405 rev C1
Multi storey building elevations 3 and 4 sheet 2 of 2 1805.25 (2) 406 C1
Domestic detached bungalow 2 elevations 1805.25 (2) 402 rev C1
Domestic detached 1 elevations 1805.25 (2) 401 rev C1

Community building proposed sections 1805.25 (1) 502 C1

Domestic detached bungalow 2 plans 1805.25 (2) 302 rev C1
Community building proposed elevations 1805.25 (1) 402 rev C1
Domestic terrace elevations 1805.25 (2) 403 C1

Proposed Masterplan 1805.25 (0) 203 C1

Community building existing and proposed roof plans 1805.25 (1) 304 C1
Community building proposed first floor plan 1805.25 (1) 303 C1

REPORTS

Archaeology Assessment Report by University of Salford ref 07/2014;

GMFRS Community Facility Desk Research Report 16 December 2013;

Urban Regen Stage 1 & 2 Site Investigation January 2013;

Environmental Acoustics Report by Cheshire Environmental Associates 9/4/14;
Extended Phase | Habitat Survey by Middlemarch Environmental Ltd August 2013
Report Number: RT-MME-114747-01;

Sanderson Associates Travel Plan ;

BGH Drainage Design Strategy;

Exova CFD Analysis Report 302486/AC4561R dated 27/3/14;

Canal Design and Historical Context Statement 04.04.14;

GMFRS Planning Submission statement April 2014-08-22;

Sanderson Associates Flood Risk Assessment ref:7650/DH/001/01 April 2014;
BGH Structural Assessment of Buildings to be demolished ;

Sanderson Transport Assessment Ref: 7932/001/01 April 2014;

BGH Design & Access Statement 25/03/14;

Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment Matrix Archaeology August 2013 Report
2013-10 project code MA538;

Bat Report October 2013;

Air Quality Impact Assessment report 13038/1 AMEC Environment and
Infrastructure UK Limited January 2013;

14.07.02 — LK Group Commentary on Planning Comments — BGH LLP Edit;
Revised Remediation Strategy Project no. 321733-02 (00) July 2014;

Shallow Mining Report L0312 SFK (TLC643) April 2014;

Responses to consultees feedback;

Coal risk assessment 321733-R03 (00); Ecology report,

Dunelm Ecology Addendum June 2014;

Environmental Data in Support of an EIA Screening Opinion April 2014 1381.01.
and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the

drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted

Page 20



to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development
is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the
construction of the development.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

e Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

e Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human

health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider environment and pursuant to

National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the

natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft
landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and
suitability for use on site. Proposals for contamination testing including testing
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as
determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and;

The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development
being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

All instances of contamination encountered during the development works which
do not form part of an approved Remediation Strategy shall be reported to the
Local Planning Authority (LPA) immediately and the following shall be carried out
where appropriate:

e Any further investigation, risk assessment, remedial and / or protective works

shall be carried out to agreed timescales and be approved by the LPA in
writing;

Page 21



10.

11.

12.

e A Site Verification Report detailing the conclusions and actions taken at each
stage of the works including validation works shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the development being brought into
use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human

health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy

Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where ground
gas remediation / protection measures are required, the approved Remediation
Strategy must be carried out to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority within approved timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason - To alleviate any possible risk associated with the production of landfill
gas and ground gas in accordance with the recommendations of the Environment
Agency and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Prior to the commencement of development, full details of a scheme of educational
panels informing visitors about the historic canal-related use of the site and
proposals for the restoration of the canal, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canal & River Trust.
The approved scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
and approved timescale with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To enhance the opportunity for the restoration of the Manchester, Bolton
& Bury Canal by increasing awareness in accordance with Policy RT4/7 of the
Bury Unitary development Plan.

Prior to the commencement of development, full details of the works to excavate
the channel of the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal to enable the siting of the ship
scenario, and all other works to renovate or repair the remaining canal
infrastructure including Barlow’s Bridge, the canal washwalls and towpath, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with the Canal & River Trust. The works to the canal infrastructure
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason - To safeguard the heritage value of the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal
infrastructure and to allow for the restoration of the canal in accordance with Policy
RT4/7 of the adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Other than the development hereby approved, no further works within the line of
the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal as indicated on Historical Context Drawing
1805.25.(0)215) or alterations to the remaining canal infrastructure including
Barlow’s Bridge, the canal washwalls and towpath, shall be carried out without the
approval of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canal & River
Trust.

Reason - To safeguard the heritage value of the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal
infrastructure and to allow for the restoration of the canal in accordance with Policy
RT4/7 of the adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Demolition works of the northern wall as identified in the Dunelm Ecology Report
page 9, para. 3.1.2 October 2013, is likely to cause harm to pipistrelle bats and
shall not in any circumstances commence or be removed or altered unless the
local planning authority has been provided with either:

a) a license issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 53, of the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 authorising the specified
activity/development go ahead: or

b) a statement in writing form the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does
Page 22



13.

14.

15.

16.

not consider that the specified development will require a license.

Reason - The development has identified that there are likely to be protected bat
species utilising part of the site, which should not be affected unless and until
appropriate approvals have been provided pursuant to policies EN6 —
Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 — Features of Ecological
Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National Planning Policy
Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

No works shall be carried out to the trees that would disturb nesting birds between
1st March and 31st August inclusive in any year unless otherwise agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

No development shall commence until full details of a scheme for the eradication
and/or control of Japanese Knotweed (Fallonica Japonica, Rouse Decraene,
Polygonum Cuspidatum) and Himalayan Balsam (Impatiens Glandulifera) and
giant hogweed is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved management plan shall include a timetable for
implementation. Should a delay of more than one year occur between the date of
approval of the management scheme and either the date of implementation of the
management scheme or the date of development commencing, a further site
survey must be undertaken and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.
Reason. To ensure that the site is free from Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan
Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 - Landscape

Prior to any earthworks an ecological mitigation and enhancement plan and
landscape management plan, including long- term design objectives, management
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The content
of the plan should include elements to mitigate for loss of trees shrubs, bird
nesting habitat, bat roosting habitat, enhancement of the Irwell Corridor and
enhancement of the Mill Pond. The approved plan will be implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

The scheme shall include the following elements:

o detail extent and type of new planting including landscape schedule largely
based on native species.

o detail of all retained soft landscaping within site boundary.

o details of long term maintenance and management regimes, including
adequate financial provision and named body responsible for management
plus production of detailed management plan

o details of any new habitat created on site i.e., new species rich grasslands.

Reason - In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated

and made available for use prior to the extension hereby approved being brought

into use.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of

road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Page 23



17.

18.

19.

20.

Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme shall be submitted that
provide details of provisions and shelters for cycle parking, two wheeled motorised
vehicle parking and a scheme for directional traffic signage from the A58 Bolton
road. The approved details shall be implemented and be available for use before
the development is brought into use.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme rlating to the enhancement
of the waiting restrictions on Wellington Street and in the vicinity of the operational
site access shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved details shall be implemented and be available for use before the
development is brought into use.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) by Sandersons (ref:
7650/DH/001/01) and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:

1. Provision of a sustainable surface water drainage system based on
soakaway/infiltration as outlined in the drainage strategy by BGH.

2. Provision of an evacuation plan to the satisfaction of the LPA in
accordance with section 9 of the FRA..

3. Identification and provision of safe route(s) into and out of the site to an
appropriate safe haven.

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied
within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in
writing, by the local planning authority.

Reason - To reduce the increased risk of flooding and pursuant Chapter 10 of the
National Planning Policy Framework and Unitary Development Plan Policy EN5/1 -
New Development and Flood Risk.

No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision and
management of an 6 metre wide buffer zone alongside the River Irwell shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter the
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme and
any subsequent amendments shall be agreed in writing with the local planning
authority. The buffer zone scheme shall be free from new built development
including lighting; and could form a vital part of green infrastructure provision. The
schemes shall include:

e plans showing the extent and layout of the buffer zone
e (details demonstrating how the riparian buffer zone and ecological
network will be protected during development and preferably enhanced as
part of scheme design.
e details of any proposed new structures, retaining walls, river access areas,
footpaths, fencing, lighting eftc.
Reason - Land alongside river corridors is particularly valuable for wildlife and it is
essential this is protected pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural
Environment and EN6/3 — Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan and National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Page 24



21.  No development shall take place until the applicant or their agents or their
successors in title have secured the implementation of a programme of
archaeological works. The programme is to be undertaken in accordance with a
Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The WSI shall cover the following:

1. A targeted archaeological watching brief during development ground works
2. A programme for post investigation assessment to include:

- analysis of the site investigation records and finds

- production of a final report.
3. Provision for an information board to dissemination to disseminate the results of
the site investigation.
4. Provision for archive deposition of the report, finds and records of the site
investigation.
5. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the
programme set-out within the approved WSI.
Reason - To record and advance the understanding of the significance of the
historic building fabric/ below ground remains for archival and research purposes
pursuant to In accordance with NPPF paragraph 141 and policies EN3/1 — Impact
of Development on Archaeological Sites, EN3/2 — Development Affecting
Archaeological Sites and EN3/3 — Ancient Monuments of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Dave Marno on 0161 253 5291

Page 25



o I 1." A it

s g

N
APP. NO 57475 A 3
o U]
ADDRESS: Land At Wellington Street / ‘
Bury s COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:1250

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2011). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 26



veld IVHNLO3LIHOYY  qdep

\ped oa_

Gd | 10z(o)szsos

ASS ou Buwelp

v [T

ajep _ peacidde

L wep| Ins uwesp

NV1d NOLLYJ01

Bumelp

SRR [OF]
U410 AL3JVS ALINNNWOD
2 ONINIVHL TWNOILYH3dO

109foud

(NYIHLHON)
NOLLONYLSNOD ¥

3

dT11 adoH g sse meyspeig

Aoaruolaqy BB ewe. sxohasng Apuenp

BEPSZS YOZLD o si00uiBuz Bupnsuog L
sipay
128525 Y0210 1L
Hdl 178 vokog

IS [[EMBNIS 81

olep | Aq
azie | s
G0 01 CAWD N0 ISRV
0061 | NS SRNINYS I 3R 2 N G %
YIOTO| M | SOV SEMNIB 3N N6 ¥ o] £ |
L9N0PA
FHOW | oM | 40 HINCS LAY MNE M @ | #d
S 0
$19091 ] N | oS ol @AY AvON0R 3N Gu| &

ONINNV1d

smejs

nwy

i
e

e

4931 s g

3 e
S NQLONIT Ty,

suer
’

Page 27



v81y IVHNLOTLIHOYY  aep

i 1] eozlorszsot | o e

oS 14 oL ¢ o

L 005°) o .

NVIdd3LSYW G3S0d0ud
NV1d 31IS

Bupesp

SH4WO ¥O4
‘10 AL34VS ALINNWWOD
3 ONINIVYL TYNOLLYHIHO

wslad

(NY3HLYON}
NOILONYLSNOD M3 |

wep

d11 0doH ' ssep meyspeig N>
1o uomtaress | wiokenns Sjueno T .
emezsvazic s | MeevIBu3 Buiieuod M_wm
iZeszE M0 L ——
vt v

waag ymens 61
e | AQ wojsiAel
nawl| m > saomeo| 19
STR/SI0S

v Auaecu 01 M00L

S ——————d

&
E
§
2| |&|ata|z(a|=|2| fe|8]| |¢

ey

sBuIpIIng 40 enpeyaS

®N

NOLLONYLSNOD

e

Page 28



IVHNLOTLIHOYY qoep

‘w_ﬂ_. V| zorllszsosy | conon - 103 s
!!-“Q_‘; ulbnﬂ ir4 oL 12 k4 ”
...... wen| on L)

SNOILYATT3 03S0d0Yd
ONIGTING ALINNWINOD
Busap

SYIWO ¥O4 L i I : , . ,
410 AL34YS ALINNWWOD I - o Mg
% ONINIVYL TYNOLLYY3dO

wefaud o - R _n__._ ‘
e

(NY3HLHON)
: T 7

T uayeAs|3 iseq pasodolg

NOILONHLSNOO H3IM

ﬂ _.ﬂ._ o) uojeaa|3 yinog pasodosg

_c LR G KRR

1]

] &

TN %E\;b\ !

SWII0 INGRIVIHL TIVM JVIREH 404
0SL(0)SZ'5001 "ON 980 335 ¢ AUON

W
"
0 s aq 3 Mhponds poeRd | 4 TTT _________ I1 11 = ._
Policten wlema s | 21 ] TTITITTI] — [E—— —_— i
PR gy § sl Duwpg | 1) . LI _._P__ LI =TT a
—— !
et | o1 E @ TT
weas g peppeg Adoumssy L] "I. — " “_ ©
v . I
[ 2 i h ¥
| o ] ] 1 1
X 1

d71 edoH @ sse9 meyspeag A q K @B n
oo Plet o] | 5 ‘
JESTS KOZIO L ——— " g

el 118 vowog
RIS JSARS 0

oap | dq
LY /)]

Page 29

=

—
Bopedg A —
o o e o | - T =] L = — =
—
== i
— -

e e I

@n
L
11

S _ : i Lﬂw&«%«ﬁ«“«ﬂﬂ = = Uwﬂrﬂ
Sppm e edeay vay z
B (TR
puaba sjepsiepy ® _ : _________:_E__::

NOILONMISNOD __ e & ® 8 @ : @ @




=[s 35
it gg gggg
8|3 igggg

o3
14
EEEEEE
€3 2
zzzzzzzzz

'l

o Al
"

um(/ll

\lll il mmnmmnnmnmu

2
a
g
8
lu

Egy gh gghl

PPPPPP




dT11 2doH 'g sseg meyspelg

o BINe | woksans o PRI
eorszs rozio 4 | OISV Buinsucg a i
By W
o

e
10005 rnRps ot

o | fa uoysaas |

nww| o o w15

NOILONYLSNOD

oniee

TERAN X QL
SHODAITELIN) L0 S8000 T U X / AECHDMNON 25 M0J AOTW

vard TWHNLOILHOEY  seep
ﬁ 19| zesteyszosy | ., son- g o
v W : !
e H”“ £ v.m““
MOTVONNG
IHOVL3A JILSINOT
SNYId
Bumeip
SYAWD ¥O4
"HLY ALIVS ALINNWOD
? ONINIVYL TYNOILYH3d0
J06faid
(NYZHLHON)
NOILONYLSNOD ¥IIN —
o HUY NUOLKEE / S0 IS TS WS JSMAE A3
- BN ¥ GOS0 3 01 3 SINGS INTWE WALTH 3 WOMNDN TV

Blst

J00y

Q uoneAs|g

50edg Jooy

Plop Joo

-~

858

PIOA oay ”
v Uonerag
L 7o) N T
e ~
’ N P
i (o wmw
- L,
) won
& i3
iz
o o
1 [ obunaq zpeg |
o
o
] Mo o emors | &
00 - — m
e
% [ [l — m
2
¥ g A )
- =18 S
o . @
[ _ s
I uewoy o . Lpeg  EuR
E &
woonjeg
B 7
B aoom o aom
o o m—mr e e+
-
AN
3 UOREABET

Page 31



valy IVHNLOALIHONY  qaep =
& K| sov(erszsosl | w.
W 0041 0z oL s

PG “”” _ on vo>_HsnMN

7 a0 s 3 4!“ RDD0E TN INKS (DS TENS) A

€401 133HS w3 IR 3 1 2w SIS TV L 3 N e TTeSE) ST e

SIS IV 12-9@ 13 S8 0l) SEIND AOM0 150~

ONITTING AFHOLSHLINW LN S/ LI s 0 8 1 2 S ST GO D0 Y YK 2008 SO K STOW 33000

SNOILVATT3 Lkl $l_=q!ﬂﬂeae.ﬁu

Sumanp TEL HB TA00 TS (BSOMN TGO W) T

DRt O SN0 TS G oM G WK gﬁﬂnéﬂ!ﬁﬂ%ﬂ“&%ﬁ

SY4W9 YO I . NOLVTES O VT DS 15 4000 L T O] -

"M19 AL3AYS ALINNWNOD 4 O LTS M40 e 4 8 S0 0G0 1502 1) R o 3 K A s N

8 ONINIVHL TYNOILYH3dO T 1SR SR Tow TS WA ST (S TELS oS o e 3w © 175 75 ‘v a2

. TN (00AC MW HUN S000 KL 3100005 WL 1Y E.:ieﬁ!ﬁ.aﬁuiﬁqﬁunﬂm!lﬁ

SO0 WREH NS BN BRGISTS MIS-N LSO DI YOI W)

TEL S SO T TELS ML ST LBHS TEUS 05 BoN Tt s

I Vs
(NYIHLHON)
NOILONYLSNQD Y3
el

d711 9doH g sseg) meyspelg | uoneasg

aoruapaR@iee | wokenns Ao TR
cmmsro 4 | oo s RVGES
noeway B L

12ERS YO L

Hd} 479G uTIpg
1905 anonys o)

sep [ A (]

nwz| m IPN M| 19

NOILINYLSNOD

ame

.
i g

Page 32



=T ;5
2 Jeppi 3
a3 faiiz &

5:3F ©

drawn A Jeate
ooroved [aws
o |™* 1:50 A1
= | 865252403 [c1 m
ot ARCHITECTURAL RIBA

...... AT

-tlll!lll!llMlllllllllllIIHIHllllllllll!lllllllllllllllH!llﬂllllllllNHllllllllIl!llIIIIIIIIIIWIIIIIIN
\

\'Ii

A .mmllllﬂlllll ‘ ”

li

G C\\i
.................................................................
||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||
|||||| T - .
||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| >
§§ X G
B - ]
R !III ||||||I __________
| |||HHH| IIIW

I

!JJN((M!JWW!H(M!fﬂ)ﬂ(mﬂﬂ

Il’ ---------------------------- 'k

\ /
\ N/ \
g\ \ g %\
\, \/ \
\ 7/ N\ /
/ s
N7 A V4
| e

e
>
-
. _ % —t—-—
|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||
.
>
-
Qe
ow
£s
EI ~ e
S
S
>
%¥777_g_ _ —x —~ —
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 7
S S~ - ||a#
B
-
ﬂv
ow
i
Be
] R
il ‘

333333




vaIy TUNLOIUHONY  qgen

win]

K| Lovle)szs0st
ou Bupmeip
134 00k}

oyen | pasuddn
oz o | ] umap

SNOILYAT T2 Q3S0d0ONd
ONIQNNG LNYHdI 13
Bupwesp

SH4W9 YO
‘UL ALFHVS ALINNWWOD
3 ONINIVYL TWNOILYY3O

1asfud

(NYIHLHON)
NOILONYLSNOD HIiH

P

d17 edoy 1 sseg Bmcmuc._m

NOILONYLSNOD

(002:4) Nv1d 30NJY338

=

{oaz:1)
NYd 300Y QIS0d0Md

i

B

0 Kouwgm

,
Y G -~
- e
(o
N T e e
. T T )
/4.' i
pra—— o a a | T
5
N
AN EL T 1
N [ S | L/t L 1
mapatmimE | | R |
! '
WHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHIHHHHHU.

Page 34



s;._._

vely IYHNLIBUHOEY  aap

hﬁ ou Bupsp

X 05°1 s | O E
| Peoraidd ™ g-g uonaeg

08 e | " wnen
T > = 2n P .._ Py
i
\ . 0000-/+ H
_ TG TVOURENS

HlM SSI¥ XS
I¥L30 VI HvSn ]

Bupmesp

0siL S - Jeg 3leas
]

z 3 0

0-0 uoideg

BTt

0000-7/+ =
|T
e T

pracy
< 0000-/+
s ] s
30 NROOY

S4ND Y04 B 00T+
; ‘ STV

2

“HLD AL34YS ALINNWNOO
2 ONINIVYL TYNOILYHIdO

foefoid

g V-V uopoag

082

(NYIHLNON) a-q uowss

NOILONYLSNOD ¥3M — e | o ‘l = L e
| iR 000 g Y
el 1 1 = . ,-., I R T T 3 ’UHHU’ 0000-/+ m

d711 8doy g ssen) Bm__mva._m_ s s Eﬁ.am:_aw_..rl_ aﬁaﬁ .u e v < ST ssoov .miag i HJJI —

0K ook Hibk S50 305 J0M oy RN (SN
TING WOLRENS
Him SS30W 35

53 M| g

h
s HORD) OMTMN ¥d DL 300 OIS 2, NOKSHGS | ¢
e | s A VOGN | &6 \

] oo SN

b UGS ML NN TV SIADD SSTXM| 9 gugﬁsgﬂgzﬁ—&-ﬁhiggﬁ
N

= \

0¥ ST MURNS 35| &

HWHIL SN0 35 QL W33 01 0N O OO0V SKIT9 | 6 71 A
\ &P &

Page 35

e
|
pI.
+
[
[
|
|
&
f
B
T
55
I
.
1
. ,|, .
|
g
|
4

ONINNVd




PLANNING

status

2 [REVGED TO CRRATE GREVTER OSTRESS

EREI 5
3 [[2 PO
ENEES g_
(=]

% 3

L@l S

-

2 >

o

(L] ==

_; Dor

s &4

dls @ OE

i Bl &g

= & L=

wOID

4

4T

A

wiil Ty LI

Ji

BAY WNOOW

_—

h
1]

L

|
\

il
b

ey
\‘Rﬂ‘l\‘a\m\l\m

T

e

)\

!

T
Ty
. ‘......m\ll_l.\!..“!ﬂ!\‘{“‘\‘l\“““

aname

! iy 1
“‘I\l\“\m oL

W
A

T
|I\l\l\l\l
l\l\l!l\lll
-\-llil\illl
\III\I\lll\I\l\I\I\Il

H
A AR

u |\|\|||‘|‘m|

= M"‘
" R“\

g

AN

A

\\\'
A

A

LOOSE RUBALE
Elevation B
R\
e

EXPOSID
AOOR
LOOSE RUBBRLE

Elevation A

A1

RIBA

MR

P2

| dals.
| date
1:50

1805.25.(0)606

COMMUNITY SAFETY CTR.

OPERATIONAL TRAINING &
FOR GMFRS

ARCHITECTURAL

project

DISTRESSED BUILDING

drawing
SCENARIO

n
epproved

‘scata

Grawing ho

25|} 28

N

W"m""""mmi

i

T

eg) gt
17—
F\ /
\ /
\ /
\ /
\ /
\ /
\ /
\ /

1805.25{0)607
FOR DETALS

depl.

10
150

LOOSE RUBBLE

T TR
e ————

Scale Ber - Melres

=

Elevation C




Jonusy IVHNLINYLS en

d7118doH B sseg meyspe,

1ZRSTS 90210 L

Hdl 118 woueg
100y e s

e | A UoreiAe)

-] o XS MM 14
WO | US| w0 S GV Doy devo] 2
sow| o TN D] 1o

SINGY 553000
A0 | NGRS 0 T oL o 300es ca Wi | g
MW om ARONO 3 01 200 | 84

~HINVINGD 01=
;

SIGNNINGD
@Uvnd00 RIS

~HINVINGD 0t~
1

TN

| UoleAs|3

A¥R000 TS /

— 1

L]

QIR TS

ONINNY1d

—HINVINGD 01—

IO

-_—

B v0y ooy

oY S0

“ B pwd oy
wmw Sd| 809(0)sz's08) YREES ST e
¢ B0 we
A
pi e n
Eﬁu«ﬁ#ﬁﬂ
2w
ORIYN3IS diHS =
Bumeip
 oume]
s1apeny
SYRHNO 04 Maid s e
L0 ALIHVS ALINWWOD e e
3 ONINIVL TYNOLLYA3A0 = o0 3 s _
1oefoud \./
]
abpug o = S
(NYZHLNON) .
NOILOMYLSNOD Mty
oy Z uoneis)g

| “wiow n_ﬂu

vA ¥08q siepenpy vA P
aN Jamon Ma10 - woq LN (@]
THOH O Hauw m\ Eu-mas JOMOT] K ol Ham Dnm

M |

HIYaOL 30 306

€ [3AS7 - UBlg



m.u-izﬁ_ TYANLONYLS 9%

=k

]
%»w vzulo)szso8)

o Buwmerp
W \wv@sz:) .

@p | panaisde

7402 04 ojep | a2 unep

§830JV H3AI B NOOLNOd

Bupeip

SHE4NO HO4
‘ULD AL4VS ALINNIWWOD
? ONINIVIL TYNOILYEIHO

pelord

(NYIHLHON)
NOILONYLSNOD ¥3IN

ol

d71 2doH @ ssen meyspeig
et | _ s o e

e + | S scpes CCT
AWy

V2ESTS VORI L
d) 1 usgeg
WIS Rty 61

oW | A Uoranar
oy | o
new] on

L

"SHRIOM ANVHOANAL

AHYSSIDIN ANY NIVAMVA ONY TIVISNC 'NOISX) TIVHS
HOLOVAINGD 3HL 'NOWDMRLSNGO 30 SIS TV Lv
O3INVINVH SI STIUINULS ONINIONOY ANV NV SNKTING
3HL 40 ALMIBVLS FHL JUNSNA TIVHS HOLOVAINGO FHL

SQUVONYLS

HSILIE ONY SNOUVOLIOIS INVATI3Y 3HI HLM
JONVOHOOY

NI 38 TIVHS JHSNYWXIOM ONY STYRAIVW Tiv

SNOLYOLID3AS ONY SINIMVI0 SIOZUHONY
LA
TIV HUK NOLLONNPNOD NI QY2Y 38 OL INUWVMI SIHL

SHIINIONI 3HL O A0 38 0L SHONVCAIIOSK
TYNOISNINID AKY ONUAYSA SHL nO¥4 TS LON 00

310N

ONINNV1d 404

smegs

Sivid a3
SS NHIOL X #07L OIN SIT08
~MHHL SS #01 ONE HLK TV

JINY INOLS 0L 0Ad IV

WOUMIA T3S SSINIVIS swwp

1312
T3S JIZINVATYO /

P

SEH 3W0S
NY1d

NOUYIO3A ®
1718 1n0 90

v

LELE G IPNEE N

ST IVIS
V-¥ NOILO3S

AT AR

J3NNS LS A8 \
G0 38 0L THE 1

A 40 IVLI BHNSSY:

SARILS dIS LNV HIM S5 5408 HONS

100 59/ 00F IV S43US KUA 3801 30N¥0
91 M0 Wuice NI THIS SSTINVIS SIS
FOE 3dAL HONS CRLYDISEVE SH300V1 SSI00¥

JLzre)
TS GZNVATI

A3 ONIXLS AOHONY
T3S GIZWVATYD

4N Q1078 38 Ot 3AMS

NIVHD S5 390Y9) whug

ONISN SNOWSQd YN0J NI Tivik AW ONLLSIA 40
30¥3 01 Q108 W TVIUN3A 5S OL QIOHONV
38 O NOOINOA "S30IS 334HL OL HIRIHVE ALINS
YIONRGA HUM Y3HIIOOL O3LT08 SUNN 3dCH
dp WUGC X WWCRY X WACGH HOYF TINNOS
PUSAS NOOLNO ONUYO A¥INKON %204-vnby

08'91

NoOINOd 02
01 SSIW 33 0L TVA IR
INLSIG 410 100 1D NOLLDZS

iU

Page 38



Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington ltem

Applicant: The Enterprise Centre Ltd
Location: Land at Kirklees Lodges, Garside Hey Road, Bury, BL8 4LT

Proposal: Community asset and education centre for environmental awareness including
stables (equine therapy), paddock, car park and education centre/clubhouse

Application Ref: 57703/Full Target Date: 22/08/2014
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description
The site comprises part of a field adjacent to Kirklees Lodge some 0.11ha in area.

The field is bounded by an unadopted road that links Brandlesholme Road to the Kirklees
Trail, the Greenmount Bird Sanctuary and the Kennels and Stables for the Hunt as well as a
number of residential properties and farmers fields. This unadopted road also contains
Footpath No.44, Tottington. The principal vehicle access to the site will be along this road
although there are other pedestrian access points to the site, via Kingsbury Close and other
statutory footpaths.

The frontage to the site is formed by a timber rail fence with a gate that serves the existing
informal car park on the site that is used by the anglers who use the Kirklees Lodge for
fishing. The western boundary is formed by the lodge itself and the eastern boundary by a
4m high field hedgerow. The northern boundary opens on the remained of the field to which
the site forms part. The site slopes down from north to south towards the road and east to
west towards the lodge in the south east corner. The fall across the site is 1.5m. The site is
located on one of the main access points to the Kirklees Valley, Kirklees Trail and is located
on the edge of the associated Local Nature Reserve.

The proposal is for the site to be used for a social enterprise project that will bring together
the existing angling use on the site with outdoor recreation in terms of the stables use and
environmental education in terms of awareness of the natural environment and the
significance of this area to informal outdoor recreation. It will be jointly operated by The
Naturally Enterprising project and Bury District Anglers Society.

The proposal is to build two timber buildings, one a stables 15m long for 4 ponys and store
together with a similar sized building to be jointly used by the enterprise as a
training/education room and fisherman's room with yard area for the ponys between the two
buildings. These two buildings, together with a separate composting toilet will be located
close to the lodge on the western end of the site. To the east of the building block, a small
paddock is proposed 15m square. Between the buildings and paddock and fronting onto the
road, an extension to the existing car park is proposed and to be formed from of natural
materials. It will contain a turning area to allow vehicles to enter and leave the site in
forward gear, a passing place close to the entrance on the road and 2 disabled parking
spaces with 16 additional spaces.

Relevant Planning History
'The Ranch' was the original social enterprise project located some 150m from the site on
the Tottington village side of the Kirklees River.

Publicity

29 Neighbouring properties at 46 to 72 Kingsbury Close, Brandlesholme Hall Farm Cottage,
Brandlesholme Old Hall Farm, Brandlesholme Old Hall, Brandlesholme Hall, Brandlesholme
Hall Farm, Old Mews, 1 - 3 Old Mews, 1 - 5 lvy Cottages, Hunt Kennels and Green Mount
Wild Bird Sanctuary were written to on the 27th June 2014 and 12 objections have been

Page 39

02



received from 46, 48 x 2, 52, 54, 57, 70 x 2, 72, 117 Kingsbury Close, 1, 3 Old Hall Mews,

1, 5 lvy Cottages and The Farmhouse, Old Hall Mews and these can be summarised as

follows:

e Potential vehicular conflict with the horses, pedestrians and other traffic using the road

e Parking on verges blocking the road

¢ Not necessary and other sites could be found in existing premises

e Potential for increased traffic on the Miller Brook Estate which is already over crowded

with vehicles

Vehicular access from Miller Brook Estate is hazardous due to its steep incline

e The existing passing place developed as part of the Miller Brook Estate has no signage
and is used by anglers

e Unadopted road is unsuitable for most types of vehicles and increased use will

exacerbate problems

Who is going to pay for the maintenance of the lane?

The proposal is a security risk when the premises are un-attended

No risk assessment policy has been submitted for children visiting the site

The applicant has not demonstrated an ability to run the project

The application contravenes UDP and Green Belt Policies

The proposal will have an adverse impact on ecology

Loss of privacy to properties on Kingsbury Close from overlooking

There are too many parking spaces

There are not enough parking spaces

2 letters of support have been received from 32 Cockey Moor Road and Communities and

Wellbeing Department, Bury Council and their comments can be summarised as follows:

o The existing work carried out with the Enterprise Centre clearly demonstrates a
beneficial impact of the participants particularly with developing new skills, motivation
and an understanding of the natural environment and animals.

e The applicant has a proven track record of working with young people and enhancing
the lives of the people who attend her courses.

All parties who have made representations have been informed of the Planning Control
Committee.

Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections subject to a condition on additional passing places to be
provided along the vehicular access to the site.

Drainage Section - No comments recieved.

Environmental Health Contaminated Land/ Air Quality - No objections subject to
standard conditions.

Environmental Health Pollution Control - No objections

Public Rights of Way Officer - No objections subject to a condition on additional passing
places to prevent vehicular pedestrian conflict.

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objections subject to a condition requiring a
‘environmental construction method statement' to be submitted.

United Utilities - No objections

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

OL1 Green Belt

OL5/2 Development in River Valleys

ENG6/4 Wildlife Links and Corridors

RT3/2 Additional Provision for Recreation in the Countryside
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

ENG6/2 Sites of Nature Conservation Interest LNR's
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

oL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt

OoL4/7 Development Involving Horses

Page 40



OL6/1 New Uses and Development of the Countryside
RT3/3 Access to the Countryside

RT3/4 Recreational Routes

HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle

Green Belt - The site is located within the Green Belt and as such it needs to be assessed
against both National and Local Policies. The land in question is already used as informal
parking for the Bury and District Angling Club and has a redundant stables from a previous
'horsiculture use' and as such its use for outdoor recreation is established, consequently the
principle concern is the development of the new buildings on the site. Consequently
Paragraph 89 of the NPPF is of pivotal importance. This makes it clear that new buildings in
the Green Belt are inappropriate unless they meet one of the exceptions. One of these
being 'provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation ...., as long as
it preserves the openess of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purpose of
including land within it'. The stables, paddock and facilities for the anglers clearly fall into
this category and as such buildings on the site can be appropriate providing there impact
will preserve the openness of the Green Belt. As such the proposal accords with both the
NPPF and Unitary Development Plan Policy OL1.

Visual Amenity - The proposed buildings are to be of timber construction and of a type that
is common in rural settings. They have a low ridge height of 3m and the timber construction
is appropriate will blend in with the surrounding area. The buildings are set well into the site
and are screened by the high hedgerow to the east. Because of the difference in levels and
garden fences to the properties on Kingsbury Close, they will not be readily visible from
these properties and when viewed from the east, across the Kirklees Lodge, the will be
viewed with the back drop of the high filed hedgerow. As such the buildings will not impact
adversely on the openess or character of the Green Belt and are acceptable. As such the
proposal conforms with the NPPF and Unitary Development Plan Policies OL1/2 - New
Buildings in the Green Belt, RT3/2 - Additional Provision for Recreation in the Countryside
and OL4/7 - Development involving Horses

Access - The application has been supported by a Travel Plan although the scale and type
of development would not statutorily require its submission. The plan demonstrates that the
applicant has carefully considered how the site will be accessed by vehicular traffic and
pedestrians. While it is possible to access the site through the Miller Brook Estate this is not
the route that the centre will use for vehicular access. The application includes the road
from Brandlesholme Road to the site within its application areas as the principal access.
This is currently the access used by the Hunt and Greenmount Bird Sanctuary which are
located to the west of the site as well as serving a number of residential properties.

The site will continue to be used by anglers and the new car park arrangements will mitigate
the need for anglers to either park on the road or in the Miller Brook Estate and as should
improve the current situation. Having assessed the travel plan the proposed use of the
centre for outdoor recreational purposes, the intensity of use of the road by both cars and
minibus's, which will be the principal method of transport to the centre for visitors, will
amount to 340 movements a year and a similar number for the staff who will be encouraged
to car share, a total of 680 movements over 170 days or 4 movements a day in terms of
normal operation, over and above the anglers usage which is already established. The
travel plan has clearly identified the need for alternative arrangements to be made for

Page 41



managing vehicles should the centre be used for events such as fishing competitions and

'open days' and as such it is not considered that the additional traffic on the road would be
such as to warrant refusal of the application. As such the proposal conforms with Unitary
Development Plan Policy RT3/3 - Access to the Countryside, RT3/4 - Recreational Routes
and OL6/1 - New Uses and Development in the Countryside.

Access to those with special needs - The development is designed so as to provide
access for all the site and would have 2 disabled parking spaces immediately adjacent to
the stables with level access throughout the buildings. As such the proposal accords with
Unitary Development Plan Policy HT5/1 - Access for those with Special Needs.

Public Footpath - The road also incorporates a public right of way and as such the
potential for vehicular pedestrian conflict. The general configuration of the road means that
vehicles only travel at low speeds and along much on the roads length there are ample
opportunities for vehicles and pedestrians to pass without conflict. In addition there are a
number of wider sections of the road that act as informal passing places for vehicles which
further mitigate against conflict with pedestrians. However, two areas have been identified
by the highways team where additional informal passing places will need to be created by
trimming of overgrown hedges and 'stoning;' of the highway verge. The applicant has
indicated that they would accept a condition requiring these to be provided and as such a
condition is recommended and has been included. As such the proposal would accord with
Unitary Development Plan Policy HT6/2 - Pedestrian Vehicular Conflict and RT3/3 - Access
to the Countryside.

Parking/Servicing - The existing car park is currently not demarcated. The proposed car
park will have 2 disabled parking spaces and 16 laid out other vehicular parking spaces.
The Council has no set standards for this type of use but given tat the lodge has a
maximum of 12 pegs for fishing and that each angler comes by car this will mean that 4
spaces plus the disabled spaces will be available for visitors to the Enterprises centre.
Given the Travel Plan and assessment of vehicular movements, this will mean that the
proposed parking should be adequate for the development. As such the proposal would
accord with Unitary Development Plan Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development.

Residential Amenity - The vehicular access from Brandlesholme Road to the site passes a
number of residential properties but given the frequency of vehicular movements it is not
considered that these will be so detrimental to residential amenity so as to warrant refusal of
the application. In terms of the properties on Kingsbury Close, the formalisation of traffic
arrangements for the fishing lodge and the centre should mean that the disturbance from
vehicular movements and parking on the estate, should be mitigated. While the use of
the road at the end of the gardens of these properties will generate some disturbance it is
not considered that it would be so great as to be a material consideration. The proposed
new buildings are located over 30 m from the rear garden fences of these properties and
this accords with the distance requirements set out in SPG 10 for Equestrian Development
separation from residential properties. As such it is considered that the proposal will not
impact so greatly on the residential amenity of these properties as to warrant refusal. As
such the proposal would accord with Unitary Development Plan Policy OL6/1 - New Uses
and Development in the Countryside and OL4/7 - Development Involving Horses.

Ecology - The application was supported by a Design and Access Statement that looked at
this issue. In addition Greater Manchester Ecology Unit was consulted on the proposed
development. They assessed the scheme independently and have stated "The proposed
development is adjacent to part of the Kirklees Brook Site of Biological Importance (SBI).
Although the development will only directly affect a small part of the SBI there will be
indirect effects arising from increased public use of the site. However, given the type of
facility planned and the expected uses of the site for raising environmental awareness and
for environmental education | would not consider that the planned-for relatively low-key use
of the site will be substantively harmful to the special nature conservation value of the SBI. |
therefore have no objections to the proposal on nature conservation grounds.' It is
recommended that a condition be imposed on any consent granted requiring a

Page 42



environmental construction method statement to be submitted. As such the proposal would
accord with Unitary Development Plan Policy EN6/2 - Site of Nature Conservation Interest.

Objections - The principle issues concerning compliance with policy, access, pedestrian
vehicular conflict, parking, visual and residential amenity as well as ecology have been dealt
with in the report above. The maintenance of the road is a matter for the owners of the road
and not a consideration in this application. The issue of the need for the proposal and the
experience of the operators of the site are not material planning considerations. Regarding
security, these buildings are similar to many agricultural and or equestrian buildings built in
the countryside. As such an advisory is recommended to be imposed on the application that
the applicant should seek the advice of the Greater Manchester Policies Secure by Design
Unit and implements any recommendations that they may have regarding this issue.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to Drawing No. 1, 2 and 2/2A and the development shall not
be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. Prior to the commencement of works on the site a scheme demonstrating to
provision of two informal passing places on the unadopted highway between the
site and Brandlesholme Old Hall Farm, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall then be implemented
before the development is forst brought into use.

Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of road safety and to
accord with Unitary Development Plan Policy HT6/2 - Pedestrian Vehicular
Conflict.

4. No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a
environmental construction method statement has submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed scheme shall be
implemented prior to the commencement of works on site and maintained during
the construction period.

Reason. To preserve and protect the Local Nature Reserve/SBI and to accord with
Unitary Development Plan Policy ENG6/2 - Sites of Nature Conservation Interest
(LNR's and Grade B and C SBI's)

5. The parking and passing place indicated on the submitted plans shall be

implemented to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority before the
development is brought into use.

Page 43



Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of road safety and to
accord with Unitary development Plan Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking in New
Development and HT6/2 - Pedestrian Vehicular Conflict.

6. Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft
landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and
suitability for use on site. Proposals for contamination testing including testing
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as
determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and;

The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development
being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

7. Following the provisions of Condition 6 of this planning permission, where ground
gas remediation / protection measures are required, the approved Remediation
Strategy must be carried out to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority within approved timescales; and
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To alleviate any possible risk associated with the production of landfill gas
and ground gas in accordance with the recommendations of the Environment
Agency and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

For further information on the application please contact John Cummins on 0161 253 6089

Page 44



Viewpoints

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 57703 / D
%+ By
ADDRESS: Land at Kirklees Lodges, Garside Hey Road
1L

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:1250

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 45



57703

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 46



57703

Photo 3

Page 47



57703

Photo 5

Page 48



57703

Photo 7

Photo 8

Page 49



F1vIS NI NOILYOLSIA OL 319V AdOD JIHdVY9010Hd
102 / €90€20001 "08N Aing “paniesay sjybry |1y “JybuAdoo umold ©
¥102/90/¢2 Jlvd 00s¢Z:1 ATVOS

o

i (GOp 1<



\ aN i HYW T 00T

-oN Buimeig £q umelsq sleq a|eog

NY1d NOULVOIOT/ N4 LIS ONILSIXT anibumeg

‘AdNg “qd INTOHSTTANYHE J40
‘5900 SIFIHMIM 1V -aNvT NO

‘GILLNIoVH
ONHSIH/ FHINID ISMAHUTINT dIS040Hd i o

Y G2 Jersayoueiy ayljopey
‘Peoy MuomsUly JauBIL 6a

€BPSLT S8LL0 RGO
915668 (POZLO) :DL

HLHOMHALLNG UaN

$80IM8G Buipjing R [eINRAaNYOIY

‘Whukdos @

gEt

—_— o~ T

SST=) TR BAG

"CRSO0NY, AR STrRAmID Sy

ey a7

SooaaNg

e o —

_ ——— =
Vs
19
t 9
77
S %
~
P
\M\qm; —
@ 1
£ e
\ e |
% .
i s
=N
; L
o 7/
4
.»\ /
I
i
'y
\\\
/
“BYQY ™)

SEE TR,




Lee

Nl

S AP

L

SECORTY  GRT

[ P a

LENES At (st
— | A e m et [\\
SELLSCTN PUESSUOTE | .
= 0 i

B AVETY  SEriCE

- Fripo ook

( ST \-\\

LELLHALS,
QLY

hn Yewmbe BLENAT (oW

| ) FaIen wool

T e —
B e - A\p‘,;.\w.c,g_ Prersace . 2. 8 _enr [R¥RNE
- N LR A A L 2L R T
b, Prade. e ey \W,Zm oLy -
) e _PAveoce. BreNAs\ord () Q—A—%T\)
A
\ i
DECOWNTY  FenlSuale = s e——— AN M\_gi_—‘ D ekl il AT
Probocs Sy RGeS “rCne c At N et v
STV N ey vty
MRS eluasge Wt =
ke, .
vhe Flels §lenaTion { leorerey .
ol g =W e I UBALD L ANTE,
(l_,‘,;:.,w-\ 7 "a;';,“;ﬁf': e L /‘SES;\’L cza\m\l_‘m\q_,
é et "y y %
fe e W he T Sy oS
i@,
e LTAAL ].
ﬂk— - —— — “ ”
[P ¥ N
Oparese.
o e LA Composy - W, A 4
— - ARSI
- \
I Loves eiswvacion (westv ) i1leo
1 1
[r - Ny v ey @5.
g % \ ‘v‘ 5 <
— o \.)(sé\-}, < C( e
(‘_\(A\\c L‘ 1 S g\é\ S »

A

o ;
(Cxzoos it LN ELS
— T T T e —ré\_;-;u_.?;:ﬁt:—‘ [ —

1

i

R et j
L ,

il

© copyright.

1S3

ktu 3‘3\&:"“ : k\«cn‘
el

atpn b ook
(\,\'y.\ é,\-.; © ,-\ \\,,-\} o & .

iml

Architectural & Building Services
NEIL BUTTERWORTH

Tel: (01204) 853518
Mobile: 07785 275483

89 Higher Ainewortu Raad,
Radcllfie, Manchester M2€ 4J.J

JobTile PROPOSED ENTERPRISE CENTRE .

FACILITIES,
' ON LAND AT KIRKLEES LODGES,

OFF BRANDLESHOLME RD., BURY.

Drawing Titte PROPOSED PLANS ¢ ELEVATIONS

Drawing No.

2

Drawn by

N.B.

Date

MAR.

Scale

1:200,1 400 |4

o T EE——

Page 52



. Veow L oo L o> oo |, ooo |
Theilgy Wb 1 1 1 1 7
SRGMINTY ! i . [ov]
i
L= 1 Em y i il 7100
sSTore. | —_— I = I
. —_ | — 118
W\m CONCEEXTE- U T AL ' ) l
CoLy ANTer =o RonT of STTBSHLRS .
Thons BLEV/ATION of STamums  (3loo SPE- B g NAC Sy
O SN R %A,
— e E
Hn“"“\‘ \

(oo

Am.

Posty  Prepooc k.
(A Cwe om)

Concege . ~ L\rom
L \RE. & CovrilowsT

|
e 40 el Vel tal | %

= AT \ohea]
i
f

, |
l ert Tnvmg |
I $°‘lu& . . 9
| (A-Bour zI’Au}) e ¢ (oo

— — = == = —_——— e
5]'_"&1‘ N st o
|
|
|

4 llioo- 50 /'m-—;-n—' oS
7 | I Presing 0
4 £ Eomeme Y e
R S, (el
1 o
B DSS TORS 3
S R

Vrind A~ Ymanas Thovtet Tlhom o o=
TOU O 1I> OOETADE - Cdvt ML—
Phclindeits BThLAS REOCED- E 14 H

L ks pmatnim 8 o rwr e :

? WS gy Brlme frASe
ng“mw (TP D /

ovd Lo s lamtl_ggs [oboes
P Gl b_pe e Uiim 3‘23} Bua-y

PFL& Postas O e E‘ AP w[«.{__,}

e e s A e

§ DA \:om0, Leioe Do He ?—A;




Ward: Bury East ltem

Applicant: Mr Chris Holland
Location: Bury Art Museum, Moss Street, Bury, BL9 ODF

Proposal: Listed building application for installation of temporary sculpture (12 months) in
alcoves at front of sculpture centre and library entrance.

Application Ref: 57725/Listed Building Target Date: 25/08/2014
Consent

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to the Central Library, Sculpture Centre, Museum and Art Gallery in
Bury, which is a Grade Il Listed Building located within the Bury Town Centre Conservation
Area. The adjacent building to the south is Textile Hall which is linked by a corridor to the
library. The building is located at the corner of Moss Street and Silver Street and the art
gallery and museum front onto Moss Street.

The building is an example of a neo-classical design and architecture dating back to 1901. It
is two storey and constructed in stone blocks and ashlar with a multi hipped slate roof and
has a basement level containing the museum and archives which is accessed from Moss
Street. The main entrance to the library/sculpture centre is not the original lobby, it was
added to the building around the late 1970's, and is accessed off Manchester Road via a set
of stone steps with handrails.

Following the grant of listed building consent for internal alterations in January 2014, part of
the library now forms the sculpture centre.

The site is bounded by several listed buildings - St Mary's Place, Manchester Road, St
Marie's RC Church, the Art Picture House, the former Barclays Bank, the Fusiliers Museum
and the war memorial.

The proposed development involves the provision of 2 metal sculptures within the alcoves
to each side of the entrance to the library and sculpture centre. The proposed sculptures
would be 'free form' in design and constructed from a powder coated aluminium frame with
lightweight floral elements in a range of bright colours attached. Each of the sculptures
would be fixed to 2 points in the alcove and each fixing would consist of 3 metal studs.

The proposed sculptures would be in position for 12 months. On removal of the proposed
sculptures, the fixing points would be made good with mortar to match the stone on removal
of the artwork. The structures themselves are permitted development but listed building
consent is required as the proposals would result in the alteration of the character of the
building in terms of its architectural and historical interest.

Relevant Planning History

43990 - Listed building consent - neon text artwork on gable wall fronting Back Knowsley
Street 3.3 metres long by 0.23 metres deep at Bury Art Gallery, Moss Street, Bury.
Approved with conditions - 18 March 2005.

52443 - Replacement of existing main entrance doors and frame; replacement of 4 windows
to right hand gable elevation; pointing and new rainwater goods at Public Library, Art
Gallery and Museum, Moss Street, Bury. Approved with conditions - 28 May 2010

52535 - Listed building consent for the replacement of existing main entrance doors and
frame; replacement of 4 windows to right hand gable elevation; pointing and new rainwater

Page 54

03



goods at Public Library, Art Gallery and Museum, Moss Street, Bury. Approved with
conditions - 28 May 2010

56987 - Listed building consent - Schedule of works include; stud partitions removed, new
stud walls between archways, curved partition wall creating new entrance corridor for
library, automated single door and set of double doors installed between library and
sculpture centre, uplifting carpet tiles and reinstate original parquet floor, new carpet tiles to
new library area, new led spotlighting to sculpture area, decoration thoughout at Bury
Central Library, Manchester Road, Bury. Approved with conditions - 22 January 2014.

Publicity
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 7 July and a press notice
was published in the Bury Times on 17 July. Site notices were posted on 9 July 2014.

6 letters have been received from the occupiers of Chiltern Drive, 31 Berkshire Court,

Brooklands, Wilson Street, Bury, 11 Tor Avenue, Greenmount and 113 Burnley Road,

Edenfield, which have raised the following issues:

e The proposal is out of keeping with the building.

e The proposal would detract from the main use of the building, which is a library and not

a sculpture centre.

The proposed sculptures would not complement the period building.

Have reservations as to how the sculpture would be attached to the building.

It would be better to have the sculptures inside the building.

The proposed sculptures are unnecessary and would not enhance the Grade Il listed

building.

e The appearance of the listed building would be cheapened by the addition of
garishly-coloured pieces of metal.

An objection has been received from Councillor Walker, which has raised the following

issues:

e The library forms part of the architectural features of Bury along with the Textile Hall, St
Marie's Church, the former Barclays bank and further along the Parish Church.

e The Council has a duty to preserve the dignity of this fine building (library).

e The proposed installations would be multi coloured, very large, metal objects, which
would be placed in an intrusive position for a year (not very temporary).

e This is a Council officer applying to do this to a listed building.

e The proposal is totally out of keeping with the listed building.

The objectors and Councillor have been informed of the Planning Control Committee
meeting.

Consultations
None required.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control

EN2/3 Listed Buildings

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be

Page 55



specifically mentioned.

Design and impact upon the listed building - The NPPF states that when determining

applications for heritage assets, local planning authorities should take account of:

e the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of the heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

e the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities including their economic vitality; and

¢ the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness.

When considering the impact of a proposal on the 'significance of a designated heritage
asset', great weight should be given to the asset's conservation. The more important the
asset, the greater the weight should be. 'Significance' can be harmed or lost through
alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or development within its setting. As heritage
assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require clear and convincing justification.

Therefore, in order to assess the impact of the proposed development upon the listed
building, the significance and appearance of the building must be assessed first.

The building is of grand neo-classical design with two main, highly detailed and decorated
elevations to Silver Street and Moss Street. The Moss Street entrance provides access to
the art gallery and the Silver Street entrance provides access to the newly completed
sculpture centre and library. The building is of two tall storeys with a basement level set in a
well, and this level contains the museum and archive. The building is square in form and is
constructed in stone blocks of both plan and rusticated ashlar, with a slate covered
multi-hipped roof. The ground floor level is set above street level and is accessed by stone
steps.

The Silver Street elevation is symmetrical, with two projecting bays containing ionic
columns, cruciform windows, strong string courses, decorated friezes and figures and above
eaves level, these are topped by tall bays with decorated pediments with balconies and
balustrades. Between the bays is a central entrance set forward of the first floor and formed
from a three arch arcade with a central doorway and alcoves to each side with balustrades.

Therefore, the significance of the building is in:

e The completeness of the building's exterior design and level of preservation;

e The building's scale and impact on the streetscene;

e It's neo-classical detailing and level of decoration;

e The Victorian interpretation of classical orders and novel re-working of traditional design
combinations;

e It's contribution to the character of the area through its location, impact and relationship
with other buildings of the 19th/20th century.

The proposed development would consist of two sculptures which would be located within
the alcoves to the sides of the entrance on Silver Street. The proposed artwork is modern in
design and as such, would represent a departure from the traditional design of the building.

Paragraph 58 of the NPPF states that 'developments should respond to local character and
history, and reflect the identity of local surroundings and materials, while not preventing or
discouraging appropriate innovation.'

The proposed artwork would be striking and modern in design but would represent
appropriate innovation detailed within paragraph 58. The proposed modern sculptures
would make it clear that these are a modern addition to the building, thus enabling the
building behind to be read. The proposed artwork would be located within the alcoves and
as such, would not be visible from the wider streetscene views of the building and
Conservation Area. The proposed development would announce the location and function
of the sculpture centre, which has secured the use of the listed building and has the

Page 56



potential to have a positive impact within the Cultural Quarter of the town. The proposed
artwork would be in place for a 12 month period and as such, any impact upon the design
and character of the listed building would be a temporary one.

The proposed sculptures would be attached to the building at two points by a bracket with 3
screws. As such, the impact of the proposed development upon the fabric of the listed
building would be localised to 12 holes from screws in the short term. The proposed
development states that these holes would be made good with mortar to match the
stonework, which would be controlled by a condition. Therefore, the proposed development
would not cause any long term damage to the fabric of the building.

Therefore, the proposed development would represent an addition to the building, but would
preserve and enhance the character of the Grade Il listed building and the conservation
area. The proposed development would be in accordance with Policy EN1/2, EN2/1, EN2/2
and EN2/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.
Reason - Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

2. This decision relates to all plans and supporting documents received on 30 June
2014 and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. Prior to commencement of works, a notice of intent to start the works hereby
approved, including a timetable schedule of the works, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved timetabled schedule.

Reason - To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved plans, to protect the fabric of a listed structure/building during
implementation and pursuant to Policy EN2/3 — Listed Buildings of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

4, When the artwork is removed after a period of 12 months from the date of the
decision, the works hereby permitted shall be reversed and the building shall as far
as practicable be restored to the condition in which it was immediately prior to the
carrying out of the permitted works. The details of the reversal works shall be
submitted and approved in writing and only the approved works shall be carried
out.

Reason. In order to preserve features of special architectural or historical interest
and as provided for under Section 17(1) (a) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Page 57



5. The permission hereby granted is for a limited period only, namely for a period
expiring on 3 September 2015 and the buildings, works and use comprising the
development for which permission is hereby granted are required to be
respectively removed and discontinued at the end of the said period.

Reason. Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the development is of a

temporary nature only pursuant to policies of the Unitary Development Plan listed
below.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253
5322

Page 58



Viewpoints

S

olton Street
Station

]

Bury School of
Ats and Crafts

Public Library
Art Gallery
and Museum

Woodbury Cent

Town Hall

Q | =

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 57725 i -
+ By
ADDRESS: Bury Art Museum /
S COUNCIL

Moss Street

Bur
Planning, EnvianmentaI and Regulatory Services 1:1250
(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 59



57725

Photo 1

Page 60



()
>
o)
O
(G
L
Q
©
m I
=
wn
o
0
(7))
C
w 1
£
©
Q
| -
-
=
o
-
[ & ]
v

_' i zﬁ_-“f
Y 3500 mm

v

-

\

\'.

A

Page 61



§ 249Yyds paysyod pasossiw

- A SEENGER- s
|3ued aysodwos wnujwnje Wwe pjod pasosiw

| Sursipoue painojos wnuiwn|e J1je1aw piAIn - o

v . . S .
mccmou;mngoa Eumw>_oauc8m_m8>:mu@m _E:pum:su._m j

9! « -Wwﬁ m e - ..___

| A
WS - W sadeys wnujwn|e apess auiew ina Jase

rre

.mm..._m_:,_.._ 2 m_m_._wum:._ wcmcmE._mn_
VIQ3IN Qaxin §

Page 62



—

>19e1q 7 omy Yum

‘Sliem Eot._
9led wono

CRELE 8.
99y xy OS|vy
(Sttem yoeq pye mb_m__ v——

9y 0 s3uxy o? )
: NS eqya; w.oy 0
Uona3s ajues,o Ulew unoy Supjog

»

3

Page 63



3
2
>

Q
R
n

Page 64



—_—

=k

Page 65



Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley ltem

Applicant: Mr Shefa Mehadrin

Location: Super Deli Kosher Meat and Grocery Shop, 53 Bury New Road, Prestwich,
Manchester, M25 9JY

Proposal: Erection of a new canopy on front elevation; Creation of 6 no. new car parking
spaces; Creation of a new footpath front and side; Cladding over existing roller
shutters to be replaced with brick work facade; Replacement roller shutter.

Application Ref: 57767/Full Target Date: 12/09/2014
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The site comprises a popular general store (A1), with ancillary office and storage above, on
the corner of Bury New Road and Buckingham Road. The site is within Sedgley Park
District Shopping Centre and has a total floor area of 413sq m. Directly to the north on Bury
New Road is a BT Telephone Exchange building. To the west are houses, slightly elevated
and fronting Buckingham Road. To the south, across Buckingham Road are commercial
properties fronting Bury New Road.

The parking area to the side of the shop, in plan form appears to be an 'in-out' arrangement,
however in practice the area is not used in this way. There are six existing car parking
spaces that are at right angles to the public footpath along Buckingham Road. These are
sub-standard in length and in practice are accessed over the pavement on Buckingham
Road. Although there are six spaces marked up, it is not unusual to see up to 9 cars
squeezed into within this area. There is a gated service area accessed from Buckingham
Road between the rear elevation of the shop and the gable of No.2 Buckingham Road.

The application has a number of elements:

1. Front Canopy - The existing unauthorised canopy would be removed and the footway on
the frontage lifted and relevelled. The new canopy would comprise of a black steel
frame, open at the side and a shallow perspex covered roof. A narrow powder coated
steel strip plate would hide the roof fixing and guttering.

2. On the side/Buckingham Road elevation the existing roller shutter over the entrance to
the service yard would be replaced by a powder coated roller shutter in a colour to be
agreed. The profiled cladding nover the roller shutter would be removed and replaced
with brickwork and a stone coping to the same height.

3. The proposal also involves a new parking arrangement along Buckingham Road. The
scheme involves reducing the width of the road to the side of the premises and creating
6 parking bays directly off Buckingham Road with a new footway between the property
and the parking spaces. The existing lighting column on the footway would need to be
relocated along Buckingham Road.

Relevant Planning History

48298 - Temporary consent for two refrigerators at rear - Refused 06/08/2007

48650 - Temporary consent for two refrigerators at rear - Approved 26/10/2007

49822 - Extension and alterations to existing kosher meat and grocery shop (resubmission)
- Approved 24/07/2008

52931 - Siting of two temporary storage containers at rear - Approved 01/12/2010

53891 - Disabled access ramp and security shelter to front (retrospective) - Refused
15/06/2011

Publicity
Page 66

04



The following 53 neighbours were notified by letter dated 22/07/14.
1, 2, 3, 4, 6 and 8 Buckingham Road,

45, 47, 53, 60-74(even) Bury New Road

5, 23-35(odd) Hilton Crescent

2 and 4 Arlington Crescent,

Telephone Exchange, Portugal Road.

Nine representations have been received from residents at Nos.4, 6 and 15 Jesmond
Avenue, 3, 12, 25, 27 Woodland Crescent, 2 Arlington Crescent, 66 Bury New Road. Points
of objection raised are summarised below.

e The shelter protrudes onto the public footway and creates an obstruction. This is made
worse by existing unsightly outside storage and refuse.

e Parking would still encroach onto the public footpath and pose a danger to pedestrians.
There have been many incidents and the proposed parking would make the existing
chaotic situation worse.

e Existing problems will not be solved by the proposed layby, reducing the width of
Buckingham Road and a single yellow line along Buckingham Road.

e To exit the new parking bays car will have to reverse uphill with the risk to pedestrians
and motorists on Buckingham Road.

e Delivery vehicles do not use the service yard but load and unload on Buckingham Road.
Photos showing an articulated truck and stacker truck loading from Buckingham Road
have been submitted as an objection. A number of safety concerns about this have
been highlighted (licence, H&S issues, driver qualifications etc).

Councillor Quinn has also expressed some specific concerns about the loading/servicing
operations at the premises.

The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee.

Consultations
Traffic Section - No objection - see Highways section below.
Greater Manchester Police - No comment.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/5 Crime Prevention

EN1/8 Shop Fronts

EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways

S1/3 Shopping in District Centres

EC4/1 Small Businesses

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict
SPD16 Design and Layout of New Development in Bury
HT2 Highway Network

HT2/3 Improvements to Other Roads

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Existing Situation - The use of the building as a retail outlet is not altered by this proposal.
Page 67



In practical terms the use of the footway immediately outside the entrance on Bury New
Road has been altered by the creation of the enclosed shelter and its use as a trolley store.
Whilst this is may be acceptable in principle, the design, siting and constructuion of the
existing shelter, associated ramp, railings and trolley store are very poor and have restricted
pedestrian access along the adopted footway.

Visual Amenity - The site is very prominent and fronts on to Bury New Road which is a
'throughroute' within the Borough where special emphasis should be on encouraging
environmental improvement and high standards of design.

The existing unauthorised enclosed canopy is particularly incongrous and has the
appearance of a rather unsightly bus shelter attached to the shopfront. The design of the
existing shelter has encouarged the build up of unsightly refuse/storage around it during
opening hours, restricting access and further reducing the visual amenity of the streetscape
as indicated in the photographs attached to this report.

The proposed open sided canopy in terms of its design, siting and construction is a
significant improvement on the existing shelter which would be removed. The new canopy
would be powder coated steel and have a more traditional appearance. It is also intended to
remove the existing concrete ramp/plinth that steps up from the footpath and regrade the
footway at the front of shop to create a more naturally graded access. The trolleys would be
stored inside the building, leaving the canopy open with a reletively unrestricted access
along the frontage.

The alterations to the building on the side, Buckingham Road elevation, the replacement
roller shutter and the new brickwork above would improve the appearance of the property.

In terms of visual amenity the proposed alterations would improve the general appearance
of the site and would comply with UDP Policies EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design, EN1/7
Throughroutes and Gateways, EN1/8 Shopfronts and S1/3 Shopping in District Centres.

Highways - The proposed alterations to the highway, including the new parking layout and
footpath realignment, have been discussed with the Council's Traffic Section prior to
submission of the planning application.

The alterations to the pavement levels at the front mean that a purpose built wheelchair
ramp would not be required to access the shop.

The proposed new parking arrangement, involving the narrowing of the roadway on
Buckingham Road, the introduction of chevron parking and the creation of a new public
footway between the parking area and the shop, would mean that customer vehicles would
not drive over the existing pavement area as they do at present but access the parking
directly from Buckingham Road. It is considered that the proposed reconfiguration would
represent a significant improvement over the existing situation which is particularly
hazardous to pedestrians.

The proposed highway works entail the applicant entering into a S.278/38 Agreement under
the Highways Act 1980. Subject to the S.278/38 agreement and planning conditions, the
proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of parking and highway safety and would
comply with the following UDP policy and guidance - EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design,
HT2 Highway Network, HT2/3 Improvements to Other Roads, HT2/4 Car Parking and New
Development, HT5/1 Access for those with Special Needs and HT6/2 Pedestrian /Vehicular
Conflict.

Objections - The issues raised by the objectors have been addressed in the above report.

The proposals are considered to represent a significant improvement over the existing
situation and as such are recommended for approval subject to conditions.

Page 68



Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to Site Plan and drawings M09075-A-100A, 106A,
K1075/01A, 02 and 03/A and the development shall not be carried out except in
accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. Details of the materials to be used in the canopy, external elevations and external
paving/surfaces shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the development is commenced. Only the approved
materials/bricks shall be used for the construction of the development.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

4, Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no development shall
commence unless and until full details of the following have been submitted to and
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority:

1. Works to form the proposed parking bay on Buckingham Road and
replacement adopted footway including all necessary alterations to kerblines,
highway drainage, street furniture, bollards and associated remedial works.

2. Proposals to provide rear yard access gates that do not open out into the
future adopted highway and desire line of pedestrain using the replacement
adopted footway.

3. Proposals to revoke/amend any existing traffic regulation orders, including all
necessary road markings and associated signage.

4. Works to remove the existing illegal structure and concrete base on the
existing adopted highway and all associated temporary remedial works.

5. Proposals to re-grade the existing paved footway areas on Bury New Road
and Buckingham Road from the front/side elevations of the building to the
respective kerblines in excess of the limits shown indicatively and incorporating
a maximum cross fall of 1 in 40, and all associated remedial works.

6. Proposals to form the proposed canopy structure on the front elevation of the
building to a specification to be agreed, incorporating a 2.4m minimum
underside clearance above the raised pedestrian areas and application for the
requisite licence under the Highways Act 1980.

7. Proposals to incorporate adequate facilities for the off-highway storage of
shopping trolleys within the curtilage of the premises.

8. Proposals to provide rear yard access gates that do not open out into the
future adopted highway and desire line of pedestrain using the replacement

adopted footway.
Page 69



The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme
and to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To ensure good highway design and maintain the integrity of the adopted
highway in the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following UDP Policies
and guidance:HT2 Highway Network, HT2/3 Improvements to Other Roads, HT2/4
Car Parking and New Development, HT5/1 Access for those with Special Needs
and HT6/2 Pedestrian /Vehicular Conflict, SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury.

For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 70



Viewpoints

El Sub Sta

Synagogue

COUNCIL

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

B

N
A
WE
/
S

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:1250

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

©
(1}
(=]
&
3
2=
(8}
7W.m
(o} = =]
S o9
In ina
S &
Z B
A A
& A
g <

Page 71



57767

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 72



57767

Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 73



vau LQ

WO OPUBISIRIOR0)U YBI-S  BELB 622 101D XPd  258L SLL LS10I8L
52 SEW JOISSLOUDIA ‘oI9S 'PUOY ARMUTBAL b L1 ‘80Ul UOIED

[ersauI0) % afsauioq - Juawalieueyy Palod - siveubu3 Eamonag 3 ()

V3KV ONDiEYd M3N ONY STIV130 Nvid 3US

JOHS AH300HD ANV LY3IN HIHSOM .
L — — —
1
S0 m APG GZW HIISTHONYIN 'TvOY M3IN AHNS 'St I
<7, (1 siueynsuo) ubisaq ybiejuel)) QU7 NISNVHIN va3HS - — p—
S13ATY
QIS040¥d SAONIQ g5

ST13ATY 4+
ONILSIXT SZLONIA 0000k

NVd 31IS a3s0doud

NV1d LIS ONILSIX3

901 B 001 52060/ SONIMVEA
JHLL OL ¥343Y 3svad
AVMHOIH ONY Y3HY ONIMYVd
YYD 40 IONVHO Hod

G0y MaN Adnd

e 7 T

i

T

W

peae)

el T
| i ey
L

st

—emn B

|
i l __
3LIS 440 Q3NN e ___ __
ANV GIHSINOW3 38 OL 3 P
\ﬁﬁ AdONYD ONILSIXT ; [
t

|
__ |
.
o —— N & j
3 = - . S . MIN ;__
£ i (@] yooa BN . @) |
1 ﬁ 74 . ; & |
i I s | NS
< 2 < |
T youi 0w \. Fal T Ih %
O [ | ]
= , z o
% ” z |
! &)
o] ! 2 |
m m
|

s
goons doks

Jognadan

—
o

omK
P

NS
65390V
ann) GV

|
i L
i ~
i
5 ak i / oL
s S0 S
. Ew.ﬂ_.. i oS ey Qe S cos
£ o o
o v p— ) QivA 553 PR o R
(yarod ¥ . . - . (aarod BN [N
o b
e HMO
TG ov 3vis M E5on ’ a5 GEND
e r\\a\;ﬂ%_ﬂ.ﬂﬂ\\\ oo ) A Lo ¢
Lot v ..\.\.\wm.\m_.\m.ﬂ..:\_h-.\.l B
2@ QIS
aay I Moo gl
o 3o s oI e
graunR o0
avou N0




$8300V JONVHINT HYIY 03S0d0Hd

dOHS AH300HD ANV LY3IW HIHSOM

| c0 i e e e st T2 St 910 o
[EiBLIGD § Jsewa - luawabeue wefoiq - siaaubu3 einpnag 3 mg
“om | (py] syueynsuod) ubisag r_m_o_:ml_U

APG SZN HILSIHONVIN ‘OYOH M3IN AHNG ‘B

AL NIHONYHIW V-43HS

Qavod WYHONIONE WOHS 3IMIIA NOILYAIT3 3aIS 3S040Nd

“HSINIA JOV18 LIV 3AVH
0L $31¥9 §5300V INILSIX3

]

/130 ¥3dns €

O PR I T e |
I R
LIL T C TTT .2

) 1
Lo
i

TIAOHAAY HYIWIS HO BNOT00
NI 034 ¥ORdE 38 01 S¥00Q0 n_w._.<00|\
HIAMO MIN HLIM 0FOVIdIN 38
015¥000 Y3LLNHS WITIOH 91X3

HOLYA OL 3NOLS ONIJ0D % 3AYOvS
HHOMMORIE HLIM 030V 1d3Y 38

OL SHOOQ YALLNHSE MITTONH ¥AAO
ONITAYID TYIMLSNANI ONILSIXZ

i
| =S
ql
=3
= —
! -
g
b+ ==
= e
—ECaohbe
5

ONILSIX3

LNVOTddY 3HL A9 AINMO
QvOd WYHDNIXNONE 2°ON |

avOod WYHONIXNONE WONH AIM3IA NOILYAT T3 3diS ONILSIXT

$3ALYD SSID0V ONILSIXA

&

!
] IR
= . —
I Tl = A
EE I ﬁQ
= :
i T : T
L 3 T T 1=-T
FiE S ron = =y il
il == ===z oSt
C : e | ] e e Srenai=ne || i
= NE = = S T L LI LD
e it | = -
% |
/7130 ¥3dns € |
{ = = T ||
o T 7 ; e oMd0O 3NOLS * !
WFT“ o = = = HLIM TIVA AMVONNOE —— I
SR 1T : HEES ¥OINE a3 ONILSIX3 |
L - i = D
= == —
= T T e = T T o e 1 5 e e T3S T
LT T T ,LiL?J,_. T T L T T T T T2 SHO0Q ALLHS
T TITT T TTT 11 [T T THTT 71 H3770H HIA0 ONIQAYTD
- .0 0 O 5 I TIHLSNONI ONILSIX3
:

| ITT |
T T
,ﬁ—h_i; : ,:__:,: 1 1:.1: T

Cre

S0 P 4 5 O O A VO PR 9 O

T

T = =
i s mrR i
R g &) e SRS e - - [es
] : d i e ¥
T i ! = .
L L & s 3 A
E g i =
= oL i Hail i \
S e . R i .
- il i i
] | i
| i ;
| i 5 -

kZ(UﬁEm(mI._.>mn_m2>>O
aAvYOd WYHDNINONG 2'ON

Page 75




Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's ltem

Applicant: Mr Brian Sweatman
Location: Land to north of Beech House, Clifton Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3HG

Proposal: Erection of garage

Application Ref: 57784/Full Target Date: 24/09/2014
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The site is part of a strip of land between the Clifton Road and a private access road with
four properties which face it. It is at a raised level from the footpath to the Clifton Road side
with a stone boundary wall and is mainly grassed. Two sections adjacent the application
site have been levelled to create parking for the other residential properties fronting the land
and there are various mature trees which are not protected.

The application relates to the section facing Beech House where it is proposed to erect a
garage. The garage would have a footprint of 6m by 4.8m with a dual pitch roof to a height
of 4m. It would be set 2.1m back from the boundary with the public footpath to the front.

The building would be of timber frame construction with the elevations in green ship lap
board and the roof would be tiled with blue/grey man made fibre cement slates and a
soakaway adjacent the drive would provide drainage.

Relevant Planning History

56632 - Lawful development certificate for proposed garage - Refused 09/10/13 Appeal
Dismissed 28/01/2014.

52588 - Conservatory and single storey extension at rear to create 'granny annexe' - AC
06/07/2010.

Publicity

5 notification letters were sent on 31/07/14 to addresses at 86, 201 & 203 Clifton Road, St

Anthonys Clifton Road and Annex Lodge Clifton Road.

One objection has been received from 201 Clifton Road who has raised the following

issues:-

e The proposed development is on a natural strip of land on which there has been no
building.

e Itis on the opposite side of a private road and is a considerable way in front of the
current building line.

e The proposal is to build on top of an old, fragile underground conduit that runs parallel to
the private road. In the last 5 years this has collapsed twice leaving a dangerous eight
foot deep hole and to the same width and cost about £1500 to repair.

e The disruption of building and additional weight could cause further collapse and
therefore it would be foolish, dangerous and inappropriate to build a garage in that
position.

The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee.
Consultations
Traffic Section - No objection.

Drainage Section - No objection subject to a condition for the submission of details of
surface water drainage.

Page 76

05



Environmental Health - Contaminated Land/ Air Quality - No comments to make.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Visual amenity and design - The garage would be set 2.1m into the site from the main
view along Clifton Road. The building would be of a size and design typical of a domestic
garage and the green timber finish would see it blend to the surroundings. Given the
existing informal parking spaces on the adjacent sites, the garage would not appear out of
place. In addition, with it being set back into the site and at a raised level, with the stone
wall frontage, and mature trees surrounding it, it is not considered that the structure would
be an intrusive feature in the streetscene and as such the proposal complies with UDP
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design.

Residential amenity - The other 3 residential properties fronting the land are set over 6m,
from the garage and as such the aspect standard for this type of development have been
meet. As such it will not impact on their amenity. As such it would comply with H2/3 -
Alterations and extensions to residential properties.

Response to neighbour objection - The location of the garage in terms of its visual impact
on the area is addressed in the above report.

The impact on the 'conduit' (culvert) in the event of construction is not a planning matter but
a private one and the responsibility of the land owner.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during pre-application discussions to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to the drawings received on 30/07/14 and the development
shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Page 77



3. Development shall not commence until details of surface water drainage aspects
have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This must
include assessment of potential SuDS options for surface water drainage with
appropriate calculations to support the chosen solution. The scheme should take
consideration of the culvert which is thought to run through the plot.

Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact.

For further information on the application please contact Jane Langan on 0161 253 5316

Page 78



Viewpoints

— -
——
-

g

Cricket Ground

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

Bu

COUNCIL

APP. NO 57784

N
/
WE
/

ADDRESS: Land to north of Beech House

)

Clifton Road, Prestwich

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:1250

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 79



57784

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 80



o

1ar

""-'fww

N
STRY

U

Wi

3
|
i

.

Page 81 L. .

.n.”i\mﬂ\.i. e —
S,
e

. W

ﬁ.@mé n\ QA_

D wad%o@

Aume mtq_\

O

R

09 T

oy poseda |
A5l H2aq AT 245



frepbe. Gocege, Beoch Huse , MZ5 346

sale 1050 . w201

B fp»(fk;s_s or & fmwxcim Ceo

Soully
eleyakion

$ide by
Maek  p sl ]

,,,,, e 6L

Page 82



REPORT FOR DECISION

Agenda lIte

U T

COUNCIL

Y/

Agenda
Item

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

2"{ SEPTEMBER 2014

SUBJECT:

DELEGATED DECISIONS

REPORT FROM:

DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

CONTACT OFFICER:

JOHN CUMMINS

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: The report lists:

Recent Delegated planning decisions since the last PCC
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Framework? Yes

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk

Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

Wards Affected:

All listed

Scrutiny Interest:

N/A

Page 83
J




TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is @ monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning
decisions made by the officers of the Council.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-None
Contact Details:-

John Cummins

Development Manager

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation
3 Knowsley Place

Bury  BL9 OEJ]

Tel: 0161 253 6089
Email: j.cummins@bury.gov.uk

Page 84




Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers B Eﬁy
Between 21/07/2014 and 20/08/2014 couNcIL
Ward: Bury East
Application No.: 57581 App. Type: ADV 21/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
} Enterprise Centre, Market Street, Bury, BL9 0DS
Location:
Proposal: 3 No. internally illuminated fascia signs
Application No.: 57615 App. Type: FUL 05/08/2014 Refused
i 24 Second Avenue, Bury, BL9 7RL
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at rear
Application No.: 57631 App. Type: FUL 20/08/2014 Refused
B 12 Tithebarn Street, Bury, BL9 0JR
Location:
Proposal: Change of use from office to childcare and learning centre (Class D1); External alterations
and work to windows and doors
Application No.: 57634 App. Type: FUL 28/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Land at junction of Fountain Street North & Back Manor Street, Bury, BL9 7AN
Location:
Proposal: Erection of industrial building (Class B1) with associated parking (retrospective)
Application No.: 57652 App. Type: FUL 22/07/2014 Refused
B 6 Heywood Street, Bury, BL9 7EA
Location:
Proposal: Change of use of basement of dwellinghouse from residential (Class C3) to business (Class
Bi(a))
Application No.: 57682 App. Type: LDCE 28/07/2014 Lawful Development
i PC World unit, Angouleme Retail Park, George Street, Bury, BL9 0BZ
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for existing retail use (Class Al) without limitation
Application No.: 57693 App. Type: FUL 15/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Holy Trinity Church, Spring Street, Bury, BL9 ORW
Location:
Proposal: Change of use from church (Class D1) to display and sale of antiques, collectables and
arts and crafts (Class Al)
Application No.: 57723 App. Type: ADV 28/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
} 3-5 Princess Parade, Bury, BL9 0QL
Location:
Proposal: 2 no. internally illuminated fascia signs and 2 no. internally illuminated projecting signs
Application No.: 57763 App. Type: FUL 20/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 18 Silver Street, Bury, BL9 OER
Location:
Proposal: Removal of current PVCu frontage and erection of a timber framed frontage of the Monkey

House bar, with double glazed and timber panels (Resubmission of 57510).

Page 85
Page 1 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57792 App. Type: FUL 19/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
} 64 Hazel Avenue, Bury, BL9 7QT
Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side/rear (Resubmission of 57609)

Ward: Bury East - Moorside

Application No.: 57082 App.- Type: FUL 14/08/2014 Refused
B Gorsey Brow Farm, Fern Grove, Bury, BL9 6SS

Location:

Proposal: Erection of 1 no. dwelling

Application No.: 57642 App. Type: FUL 28/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 45 Buckley Street, Bury, BL9 5AF

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 57668 App. Type: FUL 15/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
B Auto Spares World, Park Road, Bury, BL9 5BQ

Location:

Proposal: Erection of two new industrial units (B1, B2, B8)

Application No.: 57753 App. Type: DEM 28/07/2014 Prior Approval Required and Refused
) St Josephs & St Bedes RC Primary School, Danesmoor Drive, Bury, BL9 6ER

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification of proposed demolition of single storey nursery building

Application No.: 57777 App. Type: FUL 15/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Britannia Mill, Cobden Street, Bury, BL9 6AW

Location:

Proposal: Erection of 3 no. light industrial units (Class B1 c) with car parking

Application No.: 57838 App. Type: DEM 05/08/2014 Prior Approval Required and Granted
B St Josephs & St Bedes RC School, Danesmoor Drive, Bury, BL9 6ER

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification of proposed demolition of single storey nursery building

Ward: Bury East - Redvales

Application No.: 57474 App. Type: FUL 05/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Holy Cross College, Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9BB

Location:

Proposal: Three storey extension to rear of Mary Kelly building; single storey link between the Mary

Kelly and Marie Therese building; alterations to car park

Application No.: 57564 App. Type: FUL 31/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
. Bury College Millenium Campus, Market Street, Bury, BL9 0BG

Location:

Proposal: Demolition of the existing Sports Hall / Theatre system-built building and the construction

of a new 2 storey Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) Centre
providing workshops, general teaching and LRC accommodation.

Page 86
Page 2 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57675 App. Type: FUL 21/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
34 Somerset Drive, Bury, BL9 9DQ

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at front

Application No.: 57677 App. Type: FUL 28/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
) 9 Horne Street, Bury, BL9 9BW

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 57687 App. Type: FUL 05/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Swan and Cemetery, 406 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9NS

Location:

Proposal: Removal of smoking shelter and erection of extension at side/rear

Application No.: 57688 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Split Decision
i 5 Enfield Close, Bury, BL9 9TU

Location:

Proposal: Proposal A Single storey extensions at side.

Proposal B Single storey extension at rear.

Application No.: 57732 App. Type: TEL 14/08/2014 Prior Approval Required and Granted
i Land at Bury Football Club, Gigg Lane, Bury, BL9 9HU

Location:

Proposal: Proposed upgrade to existing equipment including removal and replacement of existing

support pole with extended pole (1M higher antennae); Proposed removal and
replacement of existing 3no antennae with 3no. new antennae on existing pole. Removal
of 1no. equipment cabinet and erection of 2no equipment cabinets.

Ward: Bury West - Church

Application No.: 57378 App. Type: FUL 25/07/2014 Refused
i Land at the rear of Belbeck Street, Bury, BL8 2PX

Location:

Proposal: Erection of 2 no. semi detached dwellings

Application No.: 57657 App. Type: FUL 29/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
} Elton Electrical Supplies, 307 Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2PD

Location:

Proposal: Part change of use of electrical supplies shop (A1) to dog grooming (Sui Generis); New

pitched roof at rear and shopfront to side (Retrospective)

Application No.: 57689 App. Type: FUL 21/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 22 Lodge Side, Bury, BL8 2SW

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension to garage

Application No.: 57705 App. Type: FUL 21/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
B 25 Haig Road, Bury, BL8 2ND

Location:

Proposal: Retrospective application for lean to canopy over front elevation and new pitched roof over

garage.

Page 87
Page 3 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57709 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Refused
4 Keighley Close, Bury, BL8 2JY

Location:

Proposal: Part two storey and part first floor extension at side

Application No.: 57735 App. Type: FUL 06/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 24 Buckingham Drive, Bury, BL8 2DH

Location:

Proposal: Dormer extension to front elevation.

Application No.: 57771 App. Type: FUL 07/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 1 Bentham Close, Bury, BL8 3DL

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Ward: Bury West - Elton

Application No.: 57614 App. Type: FUL 23/07/2014 Refused
i Alfred Works, Woodhill Street, Bury, BL8 1AT

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension to existing works and erection of 5 no. single storey private
garages/storage buildings within the existing storage yard (resubmission)

Application No.: 57671 App. Type: FUL 25/07/2014 Approve with Conditions

. Burrs Country Park, Caravan Club site ,Woodhill Road, Bury, BL8 1DA

Location:

Proposal: Erection of a new 'wardens accommodation unit'.

Application No.: 57711 App. Type: ADV 28/07/2014 Approve with Conditions

. Tesco Express, 359-361 Brandlesholme Road, Bury, BL8 1HS

Location:

Proposal: 2 no. internally illuminated fascia signs, 1 no. externally illuminated fascia sign, 1 no.
internally illuminated hanging sign, 1 no. externally illuminated ATM sign and 4 no. non
illuminated vinyl signs

Application No.: 57713 App.- Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Approve with Conditions

. Asha Restaurant, 292-294 Tottington Road, Bury, BL8 1TA

Location:

Proposal: Construction of external utility staircase to the rear

Application No.: 57787 App. Type: ADV 19/08/2014 Split Decision

] Topps Tiles, Webb Street, Bury BL8 1AF
Location:
Proposal: A: 2 no. internally illuminated fascia signs, 1 no. non illuminated fascia sign

B: 1 no. non illuminated post sign.

Ward: North Manor

Application No.: 57706 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Refused
. 2 Arlington Close, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5NY
Location:
Proposal: Two/single storey extension at side/rear with rear dormer; Reinstatement of parking space

and vehicular access to Cliff Avenue

Page 88
Page 4 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57707 App. Type: FUL 20/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
1 Hazel Hall Cottages, Hazel Hall Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9UR

Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at side/rear and single storey extension at side/rear; Porch at side
and external alterations (resubmission)
Application No.: 57729 App. Type: LBC 07/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
} 40 Mount Pleasant, Nangreaves, Bury, BL9 6SR
Location:
Proposal: Listed building application to replace 7 external windows (3 to the front, 1 to the side and
3 to the rear elevations).
Application No.: 57734 App. Type: FUL 06/08/2014 Refused
i Higher Hilltop Barn, Hollymount Lane, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4HP
Location:
Proposal: Erection of a three car garage (Resubmission of 56804)
Application No.: 57759 App. Type: ADV 11/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
B 335 Holcombe Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4BB
Location:
Proposal: 1 no. non illuminated sign to front elevation.

Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood

Application No.: 57649 App. Type: LDCP 22/07/2014 Lawful Development
} 36 St Josephs Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6NT

Location:

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for proposed single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 57724 App. Type: FUL 08/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 4 Nursery Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3EN

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension and new external access to basement

Application No.: 57751 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
} 57 Glebelands Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1WF

Location:

Proposal: First floor extension at side

Application No.: 57752 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Split Decision
i 27 Ferndene Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RB

Location:

Proposal: Proposal A : Demolition of existing garage and erection of two/single storey extension at

side & Front Porch.
Proposal B : Dormer roof extension at rear.

Application No.: 57773 App. Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
B 7 Holyrood Grove, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1PG

Location:

Proposal: Garage conversion with extension to front elevation

Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley

Page 89
Page 5 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57565 App. Type: FUL 05/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
44 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JU

Location:

Proposal: Change of use from retail (Class A1) to mixed use (Classes A1, A2, A3 & A5)

Application No.: 57611 App. Type: FUL 05/08/2014 Refused
) 74 Windsor Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 ODE

Location:

Proposal: First floor extension at side and rear

Application No.: 57731 App. Type: FUL 06/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 47 Kings Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OLN

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 57743 App.- Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
} 2 Harrogate Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OLT

Location:

Proposal: Loft conversion with dormers at front and rear

Application No.: 57744 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Refused
i 63 Downham Crescent, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OEH

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear; new side door with canopy

Application No.: 57755 App. Type: GPDE 22/07/2014 Prior Approval Required and Refused
B 59 Scholes Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AW

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification of single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 57770 App. Type: FUL 15/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 27 Sheepfoot Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BP

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side with first floor extension above existing garage

Application No.: 57781 App. Type: FUL 13/08/2014 Refused
B Deli N Dine, 5 Park Hill, Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFX

Location:

Proposal: Temporary siting of storage container at the rear for 24 months (Retrospective).

Application No.: 57783 App. Type: FUL 20/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 9 Oakfield, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 ODP

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's

Application No.: 57605 App. Type: FUL 05/08/2014 Approve with Conditions

i 28 Stanley Avenue South, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3AR
Location:

Proposal: Single storey extensions at front and rear

Page 90
Page 6 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57672 App. Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Refused
Land between 7 & 11 Prestwich Park Road South, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PF

Location:

Proposal: Erection of dwelling (resubmission)

Application No.: 57676 App. Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Refused

431 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1AF

Location:

Proposal: Change of use from Dog Grooming Parlour to Private Hire booking office (Sui Generis)

Application No.: 57695 App. Type: FUL 13/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 11 School Grove, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RJ

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side and rear

Application No.: 57740 App.- Type: FUL 14/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
} 408 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1BD

Location:

Proposal: Change of use from shop (A1) to hot food takeaway (A5) (re-submission).

Application No.: 57750 App. Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 45 Sandy Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RD

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at side and rear

Application No.: 57766 App- Type: FUL 06/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
B 13 Ruskin Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9QN

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear (retrospective)

Ward: Radcliffe - East

Application No.: 57552 App. Type: FUL 23/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
B 150-160 Dumers Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2GF
Location:
Proposal: Change of use of industrial unit (Class B2) to MOT Testing Centre
Application No.: 57617 App. Type: FUL 22/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Bealey Community Hospital, Dumers Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 9QD
Location:
Proposal: Provision of 5 no. additional parking spaces.
Application No.: 57673 App. Type: FUL 07/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
Radcliffe Tower, Church Street East, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2PT
Location:
Proposal: Conservation works to Radcliffe Tower and landscaping of surrounding land including
timber raised planters, boundary treatments and planting
Application No.: 57680 App. Type: AG 28/07/2014 Prior Approval is Required
. Coney Green Farm, Greenbank Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4ER
Location:
Proposal: Prior approval of proposed change of use of agricultural building to 2 no. dwellinghouses

(Use Class C3)

Page 91
Page 7 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57696 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
Bank House, 23 Radcliffe New Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1LS

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at side

Application No.: 57710 App. Type: FUL 06/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
Former Whittaker House, Whittaker Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2TD

Location:

Proposal: Part demolition of Whittaker House and construction of 11 no. affordable dwellings

(resubmission)

Ward: Radcliffe - North

Application No.: 57276 App. Type: FUL 29/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
} Masonic Hall, 110 Bury New Road, Breightmet, Bolton, BL2 6QU

Location:

Proposal: Demolition of existing masonic hall; Erection of two storey masonic hall and associated

development.

Application No.: 57504 App. Type: FUL 25/07/2014 Refused
) Ainsworth Hall Farm, Ainsworth Hall Road, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5QT

Location:

Proposal: Single storey outbuilding at side of dwelling; Demolition of redundant agricultural building

Application No.: 57626 App. Type: FUL 24/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 26 Bradley Fold Road, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5QD

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear; Single storey bay extension at front

Application No.: 57690 App. Type: FUL 31/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 19 Cockey Moor Road, Radcliffe, Bury, BL8 2HD

Location:

Proposal: Variation of condition no. 2 (approved plans) of planning permission 56805 - demolition of

existing bungalow and erection of 2 storey replacement dwelling: Reposition house
forward 700mm to allow increase in depth (700mm) on either 'wing'.

Ward: Radcliffe - West

Application No.: 57640 App. Type: FUL 22/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 2 Astbury Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1JS

Location:

Proposal: Retrospective application for erection of boundary fence (resubmission)

Application No.: 57648 App. Type: FUL 31/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i New Bay, 219 Stand Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1]]

Location:

Proposal: Retention of dormer at rear

Application No.: 57718 App. Type: FUL 01/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 59 Highmeadow, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1YN

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension to rear/south elevation.

Page 92
Page 8 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57741 App. Type: TEL 11/08/2014 Prior Approval Not required
3 Ardenfield Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1UP

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification of single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 57795 App. Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
7 Crossfield Drive, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3RX

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at front (revised scheme)

Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington

Application No.: 57591 App. Type: FUL 14/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Bleakholt Animal Sanctuary, Bury Old Road, Edenfield, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO ORX

Location:

Proposal: Removal of 3 no. field shelters and erection of 4 no. replacement field shelters

Application No.: 57656 App. Type: FUL 22/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
B 39 Sunnywood Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3GH

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 57678 App. Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Refused
i Land at side of 201 Booth Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 31D

Location:

Proposal: Change of use of land to residential and erection of fencing (retrospective)

Application No.: 57720 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Refused
i Butcher Head Farm, Watling Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QL

Location:

Proposal: Erection of single storey detached garage.

Application No.: 57730 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
} 34 Victoria Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4AG

Location:

Proposal: Erection of front porch

Application No.: 57764 App. Type: FUL 14/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Bleakholt Animal Sanctuary, Bury Old Road, Edenfield, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO ORX

Location:

Proposal: Erection of 1 no. haylage barn

Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom

Application No.: 57570 App. Type: FUL 07/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
B Former Cobden Mill, Square Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9AZ

Location:

Proposal: Conversion of former mill to 11 no. two bedroom apartments and 3 no. 1 bedroom

apartments along with 1 no. three bedroom dwelling house and 3 no. four bedroom town
houses in the former mill yard.

Page 93
Page 9 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57685 App. Type: FUL 20/08/2014 Refused
Higher Tops Barn, Moor Road, Holcombe, Bury, BL8 4NU

Location:

Proposal: Erection of agricultural store and yard, entrance onto Moor Road (resubmission)

Application No.: 57697 App. Type: ADV 25/07/2014 Refused
i St Andrews C Of E Primary School, Nuttall Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 91D

Location:

Proposal: 1 No. non illuminated banner sign attached to school railings.

Application No.: 57704 App. Type: FUL 15/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Hazelhurst County Primary School, Geoffrey Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9PQ

Location:

Proposal: Single storey in-fill extension to form additional classroom.

Application No.: 57727 App. Type: FUL 04/08/2014 Refused
} 16 Cleveland Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9FH

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side/front

Application No.: 57754 App. Type: FUL 11/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i Topwood, Spring Wood Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9DS

Location:

Proposal: Raise roof height of side (west) wing by 1600mm; Single storey extension at rear with

roof terrace above; Addition of juliet balcony to side elevation and additional windows and
general modifications to existing windows and doors

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses

Application No.: 57849 App. Type: LDCP 20/08/2014 Lawful Development
i 28 Thatch Leach Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6BE

Location:

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for a proposed single storey side and rear extension.

Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park

Application No.: 57702 App. Type: FUL 21/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
B 4 Delamere Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7W]

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear; raising the ridge height of roof and dormer at rear to

create a first floor

Application No.: 57717 App. Type: FUL 24/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 11 Oakdale Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LU

Location:

Proposal: New porch; remodeling of front elevation with coloured rendering.

Application No.: 57749 App. Type: FUL 19/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
i 140 Radcliffe New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7RW

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension; New steps to new external courtyard; Erection of a new

outhouse

Page 94
Page 10 of 11 21/08/2014



Application No.: 57761 App. Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
75 Sergeants Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7TR

Location:
Proposal: Garage conversion with new bay window to front elevation; New front porch; Alterations
to side/rear elevations; Widening of existing front driveway
Application No.: 57775 App. Type: FUL 18/08/2014 Approve with Conditions
} 24 Woodhall Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QF
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at front; Two storey extension at rear

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth

Application No.: 57714 App. Type: TEL 14/08/2014 Prior Approval Required and Granted
i Whitefield Methodist Church, Elms St., Whitefield, M45 8GQ
Location:
Proposal: Prior notification for installation of 8m steel pole, containing 3 antennae to western
elevation. Erection of an equipment cabinet at ground level to east of building and
associated development. Retention of existing antennae and cabinet on eastern elevation.
Application No.: 57716 App. Type: FUL 31/07/2014 Approve with Conditions
) 12 Alnwick Drive, Bury, BL9 8BZ
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Total Number of Applications Decided: 96

Page 95
Page 11 of 11 21/08/2014



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



Agenda lIte

REPORT FOR DECISION

DL

Agenda
Item 6
DECISION OF: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
DATE: 2" SEPTEMBER 2014
SUBJECT: PLANNING APPEALS
REPORT FROM: DEVELOPMENT MANAGER
CONTACT OFFICER: JOHN CUMMINS
TYPE OF DECISION: COUNCIL
FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: Planning Appeals:
- Lodged
Enforcement Appeals:
- Decided
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report
RECOMMENDED OPTION | and appendices.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk
Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A
of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No
Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

Page 97




Wards Affected: All listed

Scrutiny Interest: N/A
TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:
Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is @ monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that
were upheld.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:- Copy Appeal Decisions attached

Contact Details:-

John Cummins, Development Manager

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation,
3 Knowsley Place ,Bury  BL9 OEJ

Tel: 0161 253 6089

Email: j.cummins@bury.gov.uk

Page 98




Planning Appeals Lodged
between 21/07/2014 and 20/08/2014 A ODUNDIL
Application No.: 57456/FUL Appeal lodged: 28/07/2014
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations

Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Rohall Nawaz
Location 73 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFG

Proposal Retrospective application for front porch, two storey/first floor extension at side
and single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 57654/FUL Appeal lodged: 13/08/2014

Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations

Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Dean Jackson
Location 528 Holcombe Road, Greenmount, Bury, BL8 4EJ

Proposal Two storey extension at side/rear, first floor rear extension and garage
conversion; Porch/single storey extension at front; Decking and balustrade at

rear; Bin store at front

“Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 2

Page 99



Details of Enforcement Appeal Decisions g}@]}ly
between 16/06/2014 and 20/08/2014 N e

Location: Former Waterloo Hotel, 155 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 OTD Case Ref: 13 / 0301

Issue: The erection of five metal flues to the side and rear elevations of the property.

Appeal Decision: Dismissed 11/08/2014

Location: Former Waterloo Hotel, 155 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 0TD Case Ref: 13,0301

Issue: The erection of five metal flues to the side and rear elevations of the property.

Appeal Decision:  Dismissed  11/08/2014

A copy of the Planning Inspectorates Report and Decision is attached below

Page 100
Date of Report - 21/08/2014 Page 1 of 1




% The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decisions
Site visit made on 23 July 2014

by David Murray BA (Hons) DMS MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 11 August 2014

Appeal A - Ref: APP/T4210/C/14/2214475
155 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 OTD.

The appeal is made under section 174 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991.

The appeal is made by Mr Denis Sutherland against an enforcement notice issued by
Bury Metropolitan Borough Council.

The Council's reference is 13/0301.

The notice was issued on 27 January 2014.

The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is the change of use of the
property to two hot food takeaways.

The requirements of the notice are to permanently cease the use of any part of the
property as a Hot Food Takeaway.

The period for compliance with the requirements is 60 days.

The appeal is proceeding on the grounds set out in section 174(2) (a), (b) and (e) of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.

Summary of the Decision: the appeal is dismissed, planning permission is refused
and the notice is upheld.

Appeal B - Ref: APP/T4210/C/14/2214481
155 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 OTD.

The appeal is made under section 174 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991.

The appeal is made by Mr Denis Sutherland against an enforcement notice issued by
Bury Metropolitan Borough Council.

The Council's reference is 13/0301.

The notice was issued on 27 January 2014.

The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is the erection of five metal flues
to the side and rear elevations of the property.

The requirements of the notice are to a) dismantle and permanently remove from the
property the five metal flues together with all associated fixtures, fittings and brackets;
b) following step a) make good the concrete block, render, and mortar to the side and
rear elevations using materials of a similar size, type and colour.

The period for compliance with the requirements is for step 5(a) — 60 days and for step
5(b) - 90 days.

The appeal is proceeding on the grounds set out in section 174(2) (a), (e) of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.

Summary of the Decision: the appeal is dismissed, planning permission is refused
and the notice is upheld.

Background

1.

The site comprises a three storey building located on the end of a terrace of
residential properties and within an area which is generally residential in

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 101



Appeal Decisions APP/T4210/C/14/2214475, APP/T4210/C/14/2214481

2.

character. It is apparent from the planning history of the site that the
premises were previously a public house- ‘The Waterloo Hotel” and there
remains a sign to this effect on the front of the building. The notice refers to
No. 155 Manchester Road, and the appellant says that the public house also
occupied No. 153. At the time of my site visit I noted from the outside that the
ground floor of the main building had been sub-divided into two premises.
No.155 was called ‘Jamalicious’, whereas No. 155a had a fascia sign saying
‘Waterloo Diner’ but the premises appeared to be closed. I also noted that two
of the high external flues to the side and rear of No.155a, as shown in
photograph 1 as attached to the notice, had been removed.

The appeals are made by the operator of No.155.

The Notices

3.

The appellant’s agent submits that both notices are fundamentally flawed as
they relate to the overall premises and the Notice in appeal A alleges a material
change of use to two hot food take-aways, whereas the appellant Mr
Sutherland is only the operator of one unit. Likewise the Notice in Appeal B
alleges the construction of 5 metal flues whereas Mr Sutherland is only
responsible for 3 flues on his property. Therefore it is submitted that the
appellant can never comply with the part of the alleged use relating to the
premises now known as No. 155a and the related flues on the south side of the
building.

Although the ground floor of No. 155 appears to now be subdivided into two
separate planning units in different tenancies, there is no reason in principle
why this cannot be tackled in one enforcement notice. This is subject to the
proper serving of a copy of the notice on any person with an interest in the
land which I will deal with under ground (e) below. Further, although the
appellant says he cannot be held responsible for complying with the
requirements in respect of No. 155a it appears that these have or are being
complied with. Mr Sutherland has therefore not suffered any injustice as a
result of the nature of the notices referring to the overall property.

I conclude on this initial aspect that the notices are not flawed and there is no
error to correct.

Appeals A and B - Appeal on ground (e)

6.

The appellant submits that the notices were served incorrectly and not in
accordance with s172 of the Act.

The Council have submitted evidence to show that before the notices were
issued, details of the people with an interest in the land were received from a
Land Registry search and from local enquiries made. Further, a Planning
Contravention Notice was sent to the known owner of the property and when
completed and returned the Council say it did not make reference to the people
now operating the premises called ‘Jamalicious’ and Waterloo Diner”’.

It is apparent that the copy of the notices was served on Nakia Brown and
Denis Sutherland at No. 153 and Abdul Jafar at No. 153a, as opposed to 155
and 155a. Nevertheless, it is clear that Mr Sutherland received a notification
and he was able to lodge his appeal in time.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 1%)2



Appeal Decisions APP/T4210/C/14/2214475, APP/T4210/C/14/2214481

9. On the evidence provided by the Council, I am satisfied that the Council took
reasonable steps to find out who had an interest in the land and served the
notices on these people appropriately. Although the reference to the wrong
property number is regrettable, this error in the administration of the serving
of the notice did not cause Mr Sutherland substantial prejudice. The appeals
on this ground therefore fail.

Appeal A - appeal on ground (b)

10. The appeal on this ground is that the alleged breach of planning control has not
occurred as a matter of fact as the appellant says there has been no material
change of use of the premises. It is submitted that the use undertaken is as a
restaurant/café for the sale of food and drink for consumption on the premises,
and not as a hot food takeaway for the sale of hot food for consumption off the
premises.

11. The appellant refers to a survey of the use he undertook over a week in
February 2014 where 111 customers ate inside the premises and 25 took their
food away. The appellant’s agent says this degree of take—-away use at about
20% is de minimus and does not result in a material change from a restaurant.
He says this is a similar split to that of other national chain diners like ‘*KFC’
and ‘McDonalds’.

12. The Council refer to a site visit where a Council officer visited the premises,
purchased a meal and then left with it to eat it elsewhere, and to 5 other
observations at the site. The Council also refer to the advertising of the
premises which features the take-away facility and the option to have food
delivered to the customer’s home.

13. At my site visit I noted the overall layout of the premises which featured a
counter for the serving of hot food and which subdivides the food preparation
area from the public side. To the front of the counter were three tables with
seats and bars that customers could stand at. At the time of my visit there
were customers sitting at tables and also another person who took away hot
food. However, given this relatively short snapshot of time for a pre-planned
visit, I cannot place much weight on these comings and goings. Nor do I
consider it relevant as to whether customers stand up or sit down at tables, or
the lack of waiter service or cutlery on the tables as the Council suggests.

14. It appears to me that the main criterion as to whether a material change of use
is involved, as indicated in the difference between Classes A3 and A5?, is
whether the operation is designed primarily for hot food to be eaten on or off
the premises. From my observations at my site visit, including the
advertisements displayed on and within the unit, it appeared to me that the
overall nature and appearance of the premises displayed the characteristics of
food being prepared and wrapped mainly to be taken away for consumption
elsewhere. The appellant says that 20% take-away is an ancillary level to a
café/restaurant, but this is at odds with the Council’s evidence. From the
character of the premises that I saw on site it appears to me that the take-
away of food is the principal function rather than being only of a de minimis
level. Accordingly, I find, as a matter of fact and degree, that the use
undertaken is materially and substantially different to that of a hotel/public

! As defined in the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 183



Appeal Decisions APP/T4210/C/14/2214475, APP/T4210/C/14/2214481

house and that a material change of use has taken place. The appeal on this
ground therefore fails.

Appeals A and B - Appeal on ground (a)

Main Issues

15.

The main issue in Appeal A is the effect of the change of use to two hot food
take-aways on the living conditions of the occupiers of residential properties
near the site by reason of cooking fumes and noise disturbance, and in Appeal
B the main issue is the effect on the character and appearing of the area and
on the living conditions of neighbours through causing noise disturbance.

Reasons

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

In terms of the nature of the use, the buildings to the side and rear of the
premises are residential houses. The cooking of hot food on a commercial
basis could reasonably be expected to give rise to odour and smells coming
from the kitchen which could harm the living conditions of people living in
houses nearby the site.

Although some extensive flues have been installed, there is no evidence before
me to demonstrate that these ventilation systems mitigate the extent of odour
and smells to an acceptable level. Further, the ventilation systems themselves
are likely to be mechanically driven but no information has been submitted to
establish that the systems will not cause a noise problem as the Council
alleges. A written objection submitted by a neighbour refers to the smells from
cooking coming from the premises and to the loud noise coming from the flues
early in the morning till late in the evening.

In terms of the visual appearance of the flues, although the two larger ones
had been removed at the time of my visit, the nature of all of the flues is
shown in the photographs attached to the notice in Appeal B. I consider that
due to the size, position and materials of the flues, individually and collectively
they harm the appearance of the surrounding area and the host building. Even
though they are or were attached to the side and rear of the building, they are
clearly visible from the public realm.

For these reasons, I consider the use as hot food take-aways and the erection
of the metal flues cause the environmental harm that I have described and do
not accord with the requirement of saved policies EN1/2, EN7/1, EC4/1 and
S2/6 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan, 1997 (UDP). Although the UDP is
of some age, the policies mentioned generally accord with the National
Planning Policy Framework which places an emphasis in securing high quality
design and a good standard of amenity, and should be given due weight.

I have also taken into consideration the many factors put forward in support of
the proposal in the bullet points on page 7 of the appellant’s Statement, but
these factors do not outweigh the conclusion I have reached that the nature of
the use has a harmful effect on the living conditions of neighbours and the
appearance of the area. This harm could not be mitigated by the imposition of
reasonable conditions on a planning permission.

For the reasons given, I conclude that planning permission should not be
granted in both cases and the appeals on this ground fail.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 1‘(54



Appeal Decisions APP/T4210/C/14/2214475, APP/T4210/C/14/2214481

Conclusions

22. For the reasons given above I conclude that the appeal should not succeed. 1
shall uphold the enforcement notice and refuse to grant planning permission on
the deemed application.

Decisions
Appeal A - Ref: APP/T4210/C/14/2214475

23. The appeal is dismissed and the enforcement notice is upheld. Planning
permission is refused on the application deemed to have been made under
section 177(5) of the 1990 Act as amended.

Appeal B - Ref: APP/T4210/C/14/2214481

24. The appeal is dismissed and the enforcement notice is upheld. Planning
permission is refused on the application deemed to have been made under
section 177(5) of the 1990 Act as amended.

David Murray

INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2014
	4 Planning Applications
	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals

